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2020

435,722,601 19.73
209,288,432 9.48
204,489,352 9.26
172,443,443 7.81
39,983,944 1.81
2,565,952 0.12
1,064,493,724 48.20
185,956,339 8.42
32,500,000 1.47
218,456,339 9.89
1,282,950,063 58.10
925,408,368 41.90
20,2
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2020

NRW . BANK 02020 27 |48,000,000.00 |1.00 |47,964,213.33 |1.00 |47,977,633.33 | 2.17

CAISSE DES DEPOTS ET

o s o{2020 11 18 [43,160,000.00 |1.00 [43,043,347.44 |1.00 [43,065,711.14 | 1.95

EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK 02020 26 [40,000,000.00 |1.00 [39,982,622.22 |1.00 |39,983,944.44 | 1.81

UNITED STATES TREASURY BILL 0.01| 2020 17 [39,400,000.00 |1.00 [39,392,251.33 |1.00 |39,395,315.78 | 1.78

KFW REGS 02020 27 [35,000,000.00 |0.99 |34,702,627.40 |1.00 |34,910,134.65 | 1.58

CPPIB CAPITAL INC 0.38/2020 12 10 [32,500,000.00 |1.00 |32,500,000.00 |1.00 [32,500,000.00 | 1.47

géﬁEE D*AMORTISSEMENT DE LA 02020 28 [32,000,000.00 |1.00 |31,969,262.22 |1.00 |31,981,084.44 | 1.45

CAISSE DES DEPOTS ET

e s 02020 21 [32,000,000.00 |1.00 [31,950,115.56 |1.00 |31,967,288.89 | 1.45

BNG Bank NV 02020 21 [30,209,000.00 |1.00 |30,183,800.66 |1.00 |30,195,431.12 | 1.37
10 | BNG Bank NV 0.36275|2020 11 30,000,000.00 |1.00 [30,000,000.00 |1.00 [30,000,000.00 | 1.36
11 | UNITED STATES TREASURY BILL 0.1730427 | 2020 31 [30,000,000.00 |1.00 [29,966,534.83 |1.00 |20,994,141.11 | 1.36
12 | UNITED STATES TREASURY BILL 0.01/2020 11 27 |30,000,000.00 |1.00 |29,975,981.25 |1.00 |29,976,637.50 | 1.36
13 | DEXIA CREDIT LOCAL SA 02020 27 [30,000,000.00 |1.00 |29,950,650.00 |1.00 |29,971,125.00 | 1.36
14 g‘E\ﬁgE D*AMORTISSEMENT DE LA 02020 11 30,000,000.00 |1.00 |29,947,583.33 |1.00 |29,954,666.66 | 1.36
15 | CPPIB CAPITAL INC 02020 20 [30,000,000.00 |0.99 [29,750,800.00 |1.00 |29,932,800.00 | 1.36

KREDITANSTALT FUR
16 | fREDTIANST 02020 20 [30,000,000.00 |0.99 |29,752,566.09 |1.00 |20,892,507.37 | 1.35
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17 | ERSTE ABWICKLUNGSANSTALT 0[2020 10 29 |26,825,000.00 |1.00 [26,769,002.23 |1.00 [26,779,479.47 | 1.21
18 | ERSTE ABIICKLUNGSANSTALT 0| 2020 25,000,000.00 |1.00 |24,901,611.11 |1.00 |25,000,000.00 | 1.13
19 | PSP CAPITAL INC 0.26 | 2021 29 |25,000,000.00 |1.00 [25,000,000.00 |1.00 [25,000,000.00 | 1.13
20 | SAISSE TS DEFOTS BT 02020 12 |25,000,000.00 [0.99 |24,862,194.44 |1.00 |24,988,611.11 | 1.13
21 | KELLS FUNDING LLC 0| 2020 17 [25,000,000.00 [1.00 |24,984,166.67 |1.00 |24,987,333.34 | 1.13
22 | SAISSE DTAVORTISSEENT DE LA 02020 17 |25,000,000.00 |1.00 [24,984,201.39 |1.00 [24,986,805.56 | 1.13
23 | KELLS FUNDING LLC 1.625[2020 25 |25,000,000.00 |1.00 |24,926,500.00 |1.00 [24,984,347.22 | 1.13
24 | NEDERLANDSE WTRSCHBNK 0| 2020 18 [25,000,000.00 [0.99 [24,874,444.44 |1.00 [24,982,222.22 | 1.13
25 | EXPORT DEVELOPMENT CORP 0| 2020 25,000,000.00 [0.99 |24,789,166.67 |1.00 |24,925,520.83 | 1.13
26 | DEXIA CREDIT LOCAL SA 0[2020 10 13 |24,505,000.00 |1.00 [24,467,997.45 |1.00 [24,472,408.35 | 1.11
27 | UNITED STATES TREASURY BILL 0.012020 21 [22,452,000.00 |1.00 |22,448,301.41 |1.00 [22,448,763.73 | 1.02
28 | PSP CAPITAL INC 0[2020 11 17 [22,274,000.00 |1.00 [22,242,296.67 |1.00 [22,244,895.30 | 1.01
29 | BNG Bank NV 0| 2020 14 [21,274,000.00 [0.99 [21,121,199.50 |1.00 [21,207,997.42 | 0.96
30 | PSP CAPITAL INC 0| 2021 20,500,000.00 |1.00 |20,429,724.86 |1.00 |20,435,561.67 | 0.93

38/285



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020

2020

39/285



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10 2020
21 1,005,954 108,170 1.00 108
2011 31 1.00 108
22 1,251,708 134,596 1.00 108
2012 31 1.00 108
23 1,458,087 156,788 1.00 108
2013 31 1.00 108
24 1,610,501 173,177 1.00 108
2014 31 1.00 108
25 1,508,876 162,249 1.00 108
2015 31 1.00 108
26 1,322,727 142,233 1.00 108
2016 31 1.00 108
27 1,337,664 143,839 1.00 108
2017 31 1.00 108
28 1,386,833 149,126 1.00 108
2018 31 1.00 108
29 1,475,431 158,653 1.00 108
2019 31 1.00 108
30 2,368,874 254,725 1.00 108
2020 31 1.00 108
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2019 1,894,057 203,668 1.00 108
1.00 108

1,903,744 204,710 1.00 108

1.00 108

2,062,735 221,806 1.00 108

1.00 108

2,091,532 224,902 1.00 108

1.00 108

10 2,150,453 231,238 1.00 108
1.00 108

11 2,212,999 237,964 1.00 108
1.00 108

12 2,224,413 239,191 1.00 108
1.00 108

2020 2,368,874 254,725 1.00 108
1.00 108

2,352,355 252,949 1.00 108

1.00 108

2,072,708 222,878 1.00 108

1.00 108

2,146,200 230,781 1.00 108

1.00 108

2,208,358 237,465 1.00 108

1.00 108
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25 ABEHIEH A YATATa—at VRS

(=FIL (BE%EL) el (EREEIL)
1.20 1.800 1.20 1.800
1.00 1.500 1.00 - 1.500
060 1 800 060 H — 1 DSt DRRE S 41 800
040 i WA ) _H 800 040+ 1 G600
020t M e ey WS oot 1 300
205 2{"" 5 E:':.?E Ei'JEE E;-'-E E{!’EE 2'3'!.93 E‘J:'-‘E.:“u'lﬁﬁ E‘T;E'E 2005 20105 Eﬁf'li 5 ?3:3: EJ'I:“E- KI.-‘-E ?‘:iIEE ?3:55 ?J;?E 33:3:5 E::EE 205
2010 2020 2010 2020
2010 2010
10

21 0.00074735 0.00074736

22 0.00087393 0.00087393

23 0.00110620 0.00110620

24 0.00061735 0.00061735

25 0.00103866 0.00103866

26 0.00151403 0.00151403

27 0.00504150 0.00504150

28 0.00844963 0.00844963

29 0.01704779 0.01704779

30 0.01722739 0.01752192
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A UAF4Ta—at VIS EEs

(201 Eggaﬁﬁggﬁ# 1 | QO0IS1a03REL (201 Siggﬁggaﬁiﬁ gy | OCOIRIGUSRD
(2016RoR Ot vEIR) | 000504150%KL (e016RoR 201 7Ry | 000504150k
i ?ﬁggﬁggﬁi gy | ©00B4dgEEKIIL 6 ?ﬁggﬁgﬁﬁg Ry | 000BadgEIRKL
(201 Bﬁggﬁggiﬁgﬁ 11 | PSRRI (201 Eﬁg%ﬁg?{%ﬁ ) | GSOTTaY
oo ey | OO iR aRL Bt ﬁg%ﬁig&m g | ©oi7s2192MNN
Wi D B 0.01204895%F1L 3 | SRR 001251831 ¥FIL
2019 2020
10

21 .07 0.07

22 .09 0.09

23 11 0.11

24 .06 0.06

25 .10 0.10

26 .15 0.15

27 .50 0.50

28 .84 0.84

29 .70 1.70

30 .72 1.75

100x
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10

21 1,745,143,555 1,748,882,601 680,531,734
1,630,956,733 1,598,450,650 582,999,908

1,349,266,539 1,290,276,487 325,073,145

1,349,266,539 1,290,276,487 325,073,145

22 1,854,972,672 1,706,441,709 829,062,697
1,737,784,838 1,606,369,269 714,415,477

1,310,880,147 1,213,657,723 422,295,569

1,310,880,145 1,213,657,723 422,295,567

23 2,015,818,117 1,796,287,857 1,048,592,957
1,958,898,196 1,732,729,320 940,584,353

1,185,365,308 1,198,517,121 409,143,756

1,185,365,308 1,198,517,121 409,143,754

24 2,039,822,188 2,051,014,861 1,037,400,284
2,023,035,396 1,965,968,998 997,650,751

1,388,370,489 1,224,763,935 572,750,310

1,388,370,489 1,224,763,935 572,750,308

25 1,369,490,644 1,458,923,700 947,967,228
1,358,755,852 1,430,075,621 926,330,982

1,267,603,940 1,279,796,227 560,558,023

1,267,603,940 1,279,796,227 560,558,021

26 1,706,244,816 1,837,931,999 816,280,045
1,703,531,193 1,832,543,114 797,319,061

1,253,835,748 1,308,298,369 506,095,402

1,253,835,748 1,308,298,369 506,095,400

27 981,224,754 995,227,073 802,277,726
978,428,043 987,658,075 788,089,029

639,291,551 610,353,532 535,033,421

639,291,551 610,353,532 535,033,419
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28 945,457,833 831,548,152 916,187,407
944,711,014 827,280,259 905,519,784

511,557,600 576,301,555 470,289,466

511,557,600 576,301,555 470,289,464

29 1,839,298,837 1,765,762,901 989,723,343
1,839,273,764 1,761,748,934 983,044,614

497,859,080 482,802,633 485,345,913

497,859,080 482,802,633 485,345,911

30 3,044,445,491 2,358,017,391 1,676,151,443
3,042,827,237 2,355,110,475 1,670,761,376

750,374,801 543,366,007 692,354,707

750,374,801 543,366,007 692,354,705
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http://www._blackrockinternational .com/
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131

2020 29
107.53

23 103

23
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2020 31
2020 31

2,372,869,593 255,154,667
2(a) 2,372,869,593 ® 255,154,667
2(a) 2,886,989 310,438
2(a) 359,909 38,701
2(a) 1,063,480, 956 114,356,107
225,168 24,212
3,439,822,615 369,884,126
2(a) 1,066,832,000 114,716,445
2(a) 2,600,704 279,654
4,5,6,7,8 1,515,510 162,963
1,070,948,214 115,159,061
2,368,874,401 254,725,064

o @

39 45

61/285



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(©)

2020 31

2020 31 2019 31 2018 31

¢ > >y > >y )y )
2,368,874,401 254,725,064 1,475,431,198 158,653,117 1,386,832,717 149,126,122

( ) ) ( ) () ( ) )
1.00 108 1.00 108 1.00 108
1.00 108 1.00 108 1.00 108
1.00 108 1.00 108 1.00 108
@ 2019
@

39 45
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2020 31
1,475,431,198 158,653,117

2(c) 12,997,416 1,397,612
2(c) 29,465,466 3,168,422
14,723 1,583

42,477,605 4,567,617

9,220,944 991,528

3,337,635 358,896

338,446 36,393

25,672 2,761

67,678 7,277

10 180,676 19,428
481,424 51,768

213,210 22,926

74,610 8,023

2(¢) 32,799 3,527
13,973,094 1,502,527

3,931,700 422,776

10,041,394 1,079,751

32,436,211 3,487,866

2(a),2(b) 83,402 8,968
2(a),2(b) (54,102) (5,818)
29,300 3,151

32,465,511 3,491,016
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2(h) 3,794,826,601 408,057,704
2(h)  (2,901,383,398) (311,985,757)
893,443,203 96,071,948

11 (32,465,511) (3,491,016)
2,368,874,401 254,725,064
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2020 31
361,942 6,308 - 368,250
989,723,343  3,044,445,491  2,358,017,391  1,676,151,443
485,345,913 750,374,801 543,366,007 692,354,707

45
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2020 31

usD
32,500,000

USD
15,728,000
UuSD
20,000,000
UuSD
8,329,000
usb
10,000,000
usb
30,000,000
usb
30,000,000

uSD 25,000,000

uSD
25,000,000
usb
30,000,000
uUSD
9,562,000
uSD
25,000,000
usb
40,000,000

CPPIB Capital Inc '144A' FRN 10/12/2020 32,500,000 1.37
32,500,000 1.37
United States Treasury Bill 25/2/2020 (Zero Coupon) 15,713,688 0.66
United States Treasury Bill 12/3/2020 (Zero Coupon) 19,961,346 0.84
United States Treasury Bill 17/3/2020 (Zero Coupon) 8,313,828 0.35
United States Treasury Bill 16/7/2020 (Zero Coupon) 9,930,756 0.42
United States Treasury Floating Rate Note FRN
29,991,51 1.27
30/4/2020 9:991,519
United States Treasury Floating Rate Note FRN 20,982,225 197
31/7/2020
113,893,362 4.81
146,393,362 6.18
Erste Abwicklungsanstalt FRN 26/2/2020 25,000,000 1.06
25,000,000 1.06
CPPIB Capital Inc 9/3/2020 (Zero Coupon) 24,936,076 1.05
CPPIB Capital Inc 20/7/2020 (Zero Coupon) 29,764,800 1.26
Export Development Canada 20/4/2020 (Zero 9,523,959 0.40
Coupon)
Export Development Canada 28/4/2020 (Zero 24,890,799 105
Coupon)
Government Of Canada 4/2/2020 (Zero Coupon) 39,997,722 1.69
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;JOS 540, 000 PSP Capital Inc 14/7/2020 (Zero Coupon) 10,855,817 0.46
usb PSP Capital Inc FRN 19/8/2020 20,000,000 0.84
20,000,000 B
usb .

PSP Capital Inc 1.76% 19/8/2020 19,801,906 0.84

20,000,000
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358 ([))OO, 000 PSP Capital Inc FRN 29/1/2021 25,000,000 1.06
usb PSP Capital Inc 1.73% 29/1/2021 24,949,354 1.05
25,000,000 o

229,720,433 9.70
uSD Agence Centrde Des Organismes De RegS
28,000,000 12/2/2020 (Zero Coupon) 27,986,056 118
;JSS (I;)OO, 000 Dexia Credit Local SA 25/2/2020 (Zero Coupon) 24,968,680 1.06
usb Dexia Credit Local SA 25/2/2020 (Zero Coupon) 24,903,389 1.05
25,000,000 B
usb Dexia Credit Local SA 15/4/2020 (Zero Coupon) 11,681,794 0.49
11,724,000 B
UsD Dexia Credit Local SA 6/7/2020 (Zero Coupon) 16,872,009 0.71
17,000,000

106,411,928 4.49
USD Erste Abwicklungsanstalt 10/2/2020 (Zero Coupon) 9,996,014 0.42
10,000,000 B
usb Erste Abwicklungsanstalt 19/2/2020 (Zero Coupon) 4,967,801 0.21
4,972,000 B
usb Erste Abwicklungsanstalt 26/3/2020 (Zero Coupon) 1,683,367 0.07
1,688,000 B
usb Erste Abwicklungsanstalt 30/4/2020 (Zero Coupon) 39,837,600 1.68
40,000,000 Y
usb KFW RegS 27/7/2020 (Zero Coupon) 34,714,065 1.47
35,000,000 T
usD Landeskreditbank Baden Wuerttemberg RegS
35,000,000 25/3/2020 (Zero Coupon) 34,911,287 L4t
uSD Landeskreditbank Baden Wuerttemberg RegSzS’ 929,516 110

26,000,000 27/3/2020 (Zero Coupon)

152,039,650 6.42

USD

25,000,000 European Investment Bank 21/4/2020 (Zero Coupon) 24,897,994 1.05

24,897,994 1.05
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USD

40,000,000 European Investment Bank 6/2/2020 (Zero Coupon) 39,994,783 1.69
usb European Investment Bank 17/3/2020 (Zero Coupon) 19,836,423 0.84
19,875,000 T

usb European Investment Bank 30/3/2020 (Zero Coupon)17,541,412 0.74
17,600,000 T

usb European Investment Bank 21/4/2020 (Zero Coupon) 24,884,083 1.05
25,000,000 T '
USD European Investment Bank 24/4/2020 (Zero Coupon) 7,963,010 0.33
8,000,000 o

UsD European Investment Bank 8/5/2020 (Zero Coupon) 24,875,972 1.05
25,000,000 .

135,095,683 5.70
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usb 15,000,000

uSD
25,000,000
usb
4,228,000
usb
19,437,000
usb
28,000,000
USD
30,000,000
USD
3,696,000
uSD
25,000,000
USD
28,762,000
usb
18,295,000
usb
25,000,000
usb
16,475,000
USD
20,000,000
USD
25,000,000
UuSD
15,000,000
uSD
11,150,000
usb
19,320,000
usb
19,938,000
usb
10,699,000
uUsb
17,380,000
USD
20,000,000

Bank Nederlandse Gemeenten FRN 31/3/2020 15,000,000 0.63
15,000,000 0.63

Bng Bank NV 2/3/2020 (Zero Coupon) 24,961,500 1.05

Bng Bank NV 10/6/2020 (Zero Coupon) 4,202,143 0.18

Caisse Des Depots et Consignations 11/3/2020 (Zero 19,401,042 0.82

Coupon)

Caisse Des Depots et Consignations 26/3/2020 (Zeroz7’ 912,033 118

Coupon)

Caisse Des Depots et Consignations 21/4/2020 (Zerozg’ 890,800 126

Coupon)

Kells Funding LLC 5/3/2020 (Zero Coupon) 3,689,507 0.16

Kells Funding LLC 19/3/2020 (Zero Coupon) 24,937,500 1.05

Kells Funding LLC 15/4/2020 (Zero Coupon) 28,653,855 1.21

Kells Funding LLC 5/5/2020 (Zero Coupon) 18,218,954 0.77

KFW International Finance INC 18/2/2020 (Zero2 4,978 438 105

Coupon)

KFW International Finance INC 22/7/2020 (Zero 16,345,854 0.69

Coupon)

Nederlandse Waterschapsbank NV 11/2/2020 (Zero 19,991,156 0.84

Coupon)

Nederlandse Waterschapsbank NV FRN 13/2/2020 25,000,000 1.06

Nederlandse Waterschapsbank NV 6/3/2020 (Zero 14,975,867 0.63

Coupon)

Nederlandse Waterschapsbank NV 6/4/2020 (Zero 11,116,731 0.47

Coupon)

NRW.Bank 27/2/2020 (Zero Coupon) 19,296,043 0.81

NRW.Bank 6/3/2020 (Zero Coupon) 19,905,390 0.84

NRW.Bank 10/3/2020 (Zero Coupon) 10,677,602 0.45

NRW.Bank 3/4/2020 (Zero Coupon) 17,324,963 0.73

NRW.Bank 22/6/2020 (Zero Coupon) 19,868,945 0.84
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17,398,000
uSD
40,000,000
UuSD
2,080,000
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NRW.Bank 8/7/2020 (Zero Coupon)
OeKB AG 13/3/2020 (Zero Coupon)
OeKB AG 9/4/2020 (Zero Coupon)
OeKB AG 7/5/2020 (Zero Coupon)

OeKB AG 26/5/2020 (Zero Coupon)

71/285

17,269,835 0.73
39,904,667 1.68
2,072,945 0.09
13,645,563 0.58
19,776,043 0.84
474,017,376 20.01
1,162,183,064  49.06
1,308,576,426  55.24
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USD Federal Home Loan Bank Discount Notes 4/2/2020
6,572,000 (Zero Coupon) 6:571,604 028
USD 751,000 Freddie Mac Discount Notes 25/2/2020 (Zero 750,286 0.03
Coupon)
usD Freddie Mac Discount Notes 8/4/2020 (Zero Coupon)15,997,684 0.68
16,042,000 B
usD Freddie Mac Discount Notes 8/6/2020 (Zero Coupon)13,973,533 0.59
14,050,000
37,293,167 1.58
37,293,167 1.58
37,293,167 1.58
usb BNP Paribas 1.55% 3/2/2020 209,000,000 8.82
209,000,000 B
UsD BofA Securities 1.56% 3/2/2020 200,000,000 8.44
200,000,000 B
usb Citigroup Global Markets Inc 1.57% 3/2/2020 200,000,000 8.44
200,000,000 B
usD Crédit Agricole SA 1.56% 3/2/2020 109,000,000 4.60
109,000,000 B
UsD Weélls Fargo 1.56% 3/2/2020 309,000,000 13.05
309,000,000
1,027,000,000 43.35
1,027,000,000 43.35
2,372,869,593  100.17
(3,995,192) (0.17)
2,368,874,401  100.00
2020 31

)

43.35
33,51
23.31
100.17
(0.17)
100.00
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placement
2013
2020 31
2019 28
2019 19
2019 30
Tier Retail Only Index
2019 10 10
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31

fonds commun de

2010 12 17 2010
2011
EU 2011/61
2013 12
2019
2019

iMoneyNet First

ICE BofAML US T-Bill

2019 11
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2020 31

1,487,286 0.47

2019

25
B8

gs) 90 15

DY
00
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(www . blackrock.com)
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15

10

0.25
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2020 31
2020 31
2020 30
2020 31
0.670050 0.670550
0.756229 0.756229
1.035036 1.032684
0.148030 0.147669
1.106250 1.103499
1.314800 1.310151
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0.289943 0.289771
0.009196 0.009202
0.000839 0.000844
0.052951 0.053182
0.103717 0.103608
0.732440 0.733299
0.033103 0.033039
0.066952 0.067488
(f
11 13 BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined
(¢
2020 31
(h
(i
2020 31 1,316,295
(a

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
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(b
(c
(a
0.45 0.75
(b
0.25 1.00
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2019 2020 15

2020 16

0.025

1855
49 49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2020 31

2020 31

61,000

2019 17

0.0062
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2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174

0.01 2020 31

12

()

(i)
31
65,000,000 2020 31
2019
FED LIBOR 0.90
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13
14
2020 31
47,043
6,505
15
16

COVID-19
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Statement of Net Assets
as at 31 January 2020

ol Equity

Intame
Pow

Bsssis
Securties portfoha af cost 1066 00060F 2T 538 a5 BEAT4040  1MGIAG81 237280 S0 30 4005 SRR
Unrealsed apprecatondeprecaton ) a7 gEa 1 49,370,084 14452015 (23451 056) - (2,388 507)
Securibes portiolio af manket value Ma) D4EEOTI IOSS0SEG0 100635964 6834115 2372 B80 500N 38 GaT 103
Cash o bank ) 11,626 480 AEE 4G4 1B E12 8003, 415 2 b e -
D feom broker 15 1,203 - - 1,253 - -
Interest and deadends recenabie Aa) 3,508,130 aa 13316 3,328,391 50,909 18,515
Recewable for meestiments sold 2a) 1,064 219,054 389 515 — 938 553 1,083 480 056 -
Fecotvabie for Fund units subscrbed aa) 1,004 407 2 88T - 734,430 - -
Ol st T s — — 2.7 W] —
Toital assats 4,186, 402,015  HEROG4E33  1000MUEDT 328060067 1430831613 B 626,707
Liakslitios
Carsh owed o bank 2(a) 3,806 3206
Pargable et ifthanded ki iy 1,316,205 1,318,285
Paryable b iverstrments. purchased 2(a} 1,074,387 ATE 222,653 7332823 1,066,532, 000
Pawyabli e Find ufts fedeamd 2a) 1,408,122 035,811 - 473,11 - -
Divpderets paryatde 20a) 2,600, 704 -— - — 2,600,704 -
Ml el deaiciaton on

Futures confracts 20d) 2m - - am - -
Oy forveard Soresgn emthange iransactons 2(dy 2571 20,571
S o rarket valse 2id) 11,373 11,373
Aperied experises and ofhier habdbes 458,78 3,080 045 504,058 13 AT2 T15.501 1,515,510 151,510
Totad Habdlites 1,082, 859,687 1.662.520 153472 S8T0.07S  1,070948,214 155,406
Taital ned asasts 30357328 16402313 100713418 3100080892 2368874400 TEATLIN

T yapsbe haded of armoftnieg ool Hehod Pesss reled 0 MNobe Ha0

Appacid on behall of the Board of Drectors of the Managemen! Company

Jl Hr::j_:'. )

E Direchor ¥ Driresclor

Date 16 Mary 2020 Date 19 May 2020

Tha notes on pages 34 to &5 form an infegral part of ihese Snancial statements

Annual eport and sudited financial statements [11]
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2020

Comenoy 1 Jarary 1% H Jammry 2018
Global Alocation Pertfalic
Tolal nel assels U 2BR.402 318 34 404 823 450,562,180
il 35aal vl P
A Ol mar-d inbaing =D 16 2% 1450 1570
A Clags non-diginboing und A0 AD 1837 16 56 1g0s
A Class mon-dsinbitfmg und JFY S 111 64 10208 11544

Glabal Equity Inceme Penfalis
Tedal net assols UED 00733410 1039688269 131,523,009
Bl el vl g bl

A Class disinbgt LD 14 55 1327 LE X
F Class disd =D 1721 15.18 IF &5
Incoma Strotegies Fortholia
Todad net ossots usn 30,090,802 336,167,587 386,367,476
Ml ansal valua per
A Class distributing il LD 555 a9 &7
A Class distibuting unil SGD hedgad S60D 10 38 N} Y- ]
AD Class: disinibuling ued LED 45 a17 a7d
B Class di sinbiafing und i) 555 547 573
& Clags dishribud ing unit LD 1003 .1 [{eRct )
J Class dish ributing wne ED 5 54 = 38 5 &
Super Money Market Fund "
Tolal net assels uzo 2.388.874.401 1478431198 1388852117
Ml appsl valiue par
Commen disiribuling ung usD 1 () 1 ) § 00
Current distritading und UED 100 104 100
Instiutional | diddébiding wni UED 1 1) 1.1} 100

Warld Inceme Portfalia
Todal net assote usn 28,471,301 26,850,564 IETEL 106
Mol el valug pol

A Class distnbuting und =D 1125 1078 TRE]
A Class di gnbiding unil A0 AU 104 10,38 oS
A Class disinbating undl EUR ELR 349 240 Lpay

O Sogeaet kol WMoY iyl gty P b0 PR v LIS 0 ] it 1 iy 2010 B COMESTIe] i Y b Probiies Dol it hiel & et Villsh ol It PR Placinsh il i
ot 28

Tha Nades o0 pages T9 10 5 Form &h integral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

[12] BlackRock Glotal Invesiment Series
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended ended 31 January 2020

Blackf ook Glotal
Ieresiment Glotml &l pation (Eotml Equity

Torias Combined Particlio Imcoanh Portiolia

Wot naseds of the baginming of the yoar 230 884241 164 428 £22 103,966 389
I aither
Bari rtoras

Bord and koan Inbanes!

Devidands (ral of williedding 1) ) ) BET 2
{thar mcome 11 fes Fdas
Tedal Insome 11,958 3,560, 62
Expenses
Bl inforog 2al [l
Mandgemenl 1ase 4 19,940,541
Disfsibutbon [oas 4 T804 4G 2,404 068
Adminisiraion feas [ Bk 0As 211,158
At Taas v 093 15,161
Lodgal fads b ]
Frinting and other reporing fees 31 M0
Taoks 1
Coordination faas 5 B0 1Es
Cssposilary (s i 23,559
Transiar agant faas 11 982
Loan comm tment foas 13 — —_
Miscolianodis foas Hal s | 16572
Todal expers os befors redmb uns emsnt 5252 474 TEA ELE
Roimburgament of apanses q 3838 T — =
Tolal expensos after reimbursement 24208709 5252 AT TE1 BEE
Nt inwosbrent incame{delicit) 45,606,023 {5.248,918) 2,808,076
Roakized gain on Investmens Ha) 2k} 41, 245222 16,580,138 TR
Foclitad (less) on invesimants Ha) 2} {26 504 04T TIT TR} (2 A4 154}
Ml realised gaindoes) on
Fuilifde chislias! 3 24y
Forgign currenalas: and forward forsign axchangs bransactions Hd). e [ S84 L P BEZ AT
S ap hransas 2[4 == =
Dpfiors corffads 2{d¥
Wt realised gainiloss) for the year 40, 708317 14,108,234
Changs In urrsalised apprecialion on inesiments 30 THE S5 M S 06T
Changa in unriaised (diphiod 8ten) on imaetm snks 18, 260 564 592 060
Mal changs in unrealized appradaliony deprstialion) on
Fubures conlracts 2[4} — —
Foregn asrfences ard foraard fonagn ochangd Iransaclions Zdy.2[0} 0 155
Swap transpdions 2d) = =
et change in unrealised appreciation(deprecision) for the year Er R IR 20,880, 35T B80T
Increas aDecroass) in mot assets o8 & rosdll of sparations 108,515,093 0.827.8T 16,122,353
Mevomants B unlt capital

5 @ rasul of issug of urils 2R} A E GBS T8 10,354 257 TATE AN
Ml paymants a5 8 nesul of repurchass of unis P[4} §3.081 S50 467 (1 A (23 THE 20y
I P b Dcroase) Im el assots o8 & resall of movements in unit capital T40, 105634 (1T 593979 (16305889
D dords doclarsd 18 {52 8%F 690 - L3045 194)
Mot nsaods of the ond of T year 3403, 572. 004 266,402,315 100,733,419

T Ndas o1 papes T9 40 &5 Form &h integral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

Annual repor and audited financial stalements [13]
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

for the year ended ended 31 January 2020 continued

Incoere Strabegies Super boney
Bkt Fund
ush
Nt asadds o the beginming of Bhe yoear 1ATHAI 05 20,350,564
Income
Blari; intoras Ak 12597 418 -
Bond @0 boan Inbaes 19,73 423 28 465 465 -
Cevidends {nat of wilbiedding tasch g1 .25 = VDA 25
Cihar Incomg — LE Pryox) —_
Tolal incame 19847482 42 477,608 1,086,258
Expaonses
Bl inforosl Heb — = pint ]
Managornent faes 4 1,990,315 8220 544 139957
Diststbudion [ees ] 1646 03 JAET BES
Somintsiration feas B T 265 5 d48
Ao Tipiss v 1ES0G 25,672
Logal fess TrAES =
Prinking and olher regoring e T2 5 &7 678
Taoss 10 170220 180 676
Coordination faas 5 BE50 421 424 653
Dapoadary [t b 15348 213,210 10554
Transfor agent fogs FALL] T4 10 2T
Loan commiiment faas 12 10 563 _ —_
Slrzcalan s fides alsl, 12,269 32,7 174,412
Todal expors os belore reimb urs ermsant 4577028 13,673,094 263, T2
Flambursamant of apanses i — 1531 700 —
Total expons os after reimbursament 4 5TTR2E 40,041,354 E83, T2
Het inwastment Incomeddoficit) 15270428 32438211 422526
Flaabiad gain of Mwisbs e Hal2s) 16 249 261 &3 402 247142
Foabsed {loss) on imssiments Ha). b} (23,1088 455 (12 W et a3l =5
Ml roalised gaind]oBs) on
Futunss conlracls 3y B4 _ N
Foreign curvencias ard foreard foreign auchangs rangactong i el {3AsT) —_ [T HAR]]
S DA ions 2{d} (14,734 - -
Cphons contrads 2{d {737 = =
et realised gainfloss) for the year (6,897.997) 0,000 (138,358}
Change in unrealised apprecialion on imasiments E0THAIE a bl ok
Changs in unraaliced [depredation) on inaaim ents 13,531 52% == (% )
Ml changa in unifsalsed Sppredabent dighscalion) an
Fubyres conlracl (355) — -
Forgdgn cunrendas ard forward forssgn dochanga bransactions g 410 - 14
Swap transed ons 17208 o it
Nt change in unrgalised sppresiationideprocision] for thy your 15,664,022 e ATEIST
Inereis e Dot oass) M el assols 0% 6 rosull of oporations 26,940,151 32,485,511 450,57
Mo omontE bn unit capital
Ml rocalpls a8 & rasul of s ol wils 2[R} 16,343 380 3,704,525 601 254 5. 550
Mo parym onlS &5 & rasul of repurdniss of unfs 2{n} 45,668 025) {2,201, 363, F=3) 42, TE6 434)
I feat aiDetroans) in nol asssts o9 & rosdll of movements in unit capital (29317148 93 443,203 {120, 506)
D dands doalared 11 {16 635, 701 {42,485 511 [Fi18.204)
Nt assodn ot tho ond of (B ydar 319,000,882 2.368,374,41 28471301

Tha noles on pages T9 10 45 Form an nfegral part of Tem Bnanaal o Wiemants

[14] BilackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories
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Statement of Changes in Units Outstanding
for the year ended 31 January 2020

Uity cutstanding Uity oyt nding
Units mt the end

Fsaurd e of the year

Global Aocation Perfalia

8,100 4
85E127 2
B0, 28 1
Global Equity
AClass dighnbs 2,863 184,128
Class dgintas £ 946 E25 a4 552
Insz ety Shralegies Portlolis
A Glass diginbuting ued 6192 28 T am
]
432 1
54 (i 54 194 G4
T & 308 - fre o e
004 723 549 1044 445 401 ] 5h 44
485 345 913 TEO_TT 801 B92 184,707
Waorld Incsm Portlolia
A Class digrbuling 1399 (e §24T 800
2 1301
o _"'.

T rerbaes 0N paps 38 40 &5 formn @n ndegral part of T Bnarcoal o sl man's

Annual repor and audited financial stalements [18]
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Super Money Market Fund

Portfolio of Investments as at 31 January 202
]
at

Hodding Descripion

Transferable Securities and Money Markel Instruments Admitted

to an Officlal Stock Exchange Listing or Dealt In on Ancther
Regulated Market

BONDS
Canada
USD 32 500,000  CPPE Capilal Inc 1444 FRN
10r 2020 22 500 Oy
32 500, 000
United States
USD 15,725,000 Uniled Slates Treasury B4l
FECHAN0 { Fero Couipon) 15, 713, 688
LISE 20000 000 Liniled Slates Treasury Bl
12RO 20 { Foro Coupon) 19,961 346
LS 8 340 00 Linitisd Stakes. Troasury Bl
TR0 | Foro Coupon) A.313 528
LSO 10000 ) Unilid Statos Trocsary Bl
AEFA0 (Fora Coupon) ), 5050, Fhiz

USD 30000 000 Uniled Stades Troasuny

Foaling Hale Moba FRM

M 2,501,559
USD 30000000 United Siatos Troasury

Floaling Rale Mol FRN

KA LFTi Pl 20 G52 725
113,803 367
Tokiad Bords 146 303, 367
COMMERCIAL PAPER
Australia
USD 75 000 000 Erste Abssckhmngsanstall FRN
A0 20 Q0 OO
24 (a0l M
Canada
USD 25000000  CPPlk Capital Ine
BN { fore Coupon} M Q56 0TE
USD 30000 000 CPPE Capital Inc
A0 | Foro Coupon) 20 764 B0
LS 8 562 000 Expant Dewiopen Canada
SORAHD [ dero Couon 9,523, 958
USD 75000000 Export Desslopmont Cansada
FERAA00 { Jero Coupon) 24 590, 708
US0 40,000 000 Goverrament OF Canada
ATANR0 { ot Colpon) 3 007 TR
USD 108000 PSP Capital ne
A4 A0 { Foro Coupon) 10 E55, 8147
USD 20000 000 P59 Capila e FRM
TR0 20 0D, MY
USD 20000000 PP Capital ine 1.768%
1ERA0 10 801 B0
USD 75000000 P3P Capital nc FRN
A 24 (e M
USD #5000 00 PEP Caplial bnc 1 F3%
i DR T SR
F20_T20 433
Franoe

LISD 78,000,000 Agoncs Conirabs Dos

Organismas Dae Rogs

V2REENED (Foro Coupon) 7 586 056
USD 25000000 Duda Crodil Local SA

FSTHA0 (Lero Coupony 24 550, GH
USD 250000000 Daxda Crodil Local SA

FEANA0 {fero Coupon) 24 903, 365
US0D 11,74 000 Deda Credl | ooal S8

150500 [ Aora Codipon) 11,681 T4

USD 17000000 Doda Crodt Local 54
BT | Lodo Coupon} 16 BFZ 000
106 411,924

1.37
1.37

068

0B

035

042

127
4,81
.18

106
1 06

105

136

049

1.05

169

046

084

054

106

104
9,70

106

105

049

0.1
449
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Holding

USD 10,000,004
USD 4 9721000
USD 1 685 D00

LIS 20,000 D00

LIS 35 000 000

WIS 35,000,000

UISD 25 000 00

IS0 25 000 000

LISE 40,000 004
USD 98,875 .004
USD 17 600,004
UISD 25 000,004

USD B 000 D00

ISD 2% 000 000

USD 15 000 000

LISD 25 000, 004
LIS 4 e )

USD 19437 000

LIS 26 000 000

LSO 30,000 004

S0 3 656 009
LISD 25 000000
LSO 26 762 000
LIS 96 205 000

LIS 25 000 004

Ooooooooooooooooooad

e ol

Mat
Descripion S0 Assals
Germary
Erslm Adrtckhangsasta
TORA00 { faro Coupon) 1.9596 014 042
Erstm Adraickhmgsiarstan
THEAA00 { Faro Coupon) 4,967 201 (4]
Erstn Alrdckhmygsanstal
HAA0 {Lere Coupon) 1,623 36T o007
Ersto Adrickhmgsarstan
HNAR0ED { Lore Coupon) 30,637 G600 1.6a
KIPW Reg Z7772000 { faro
oot 34 714 085 147
Landeshmchil ank Badon
Wusrtlomberg Regs
2070 | Zere Coupon) 34 011 287 147¥
Lianchirshornchitank Biiscin
‘Wisrtlomborg Rags
FTRH) (| Lare Colpon) 25,52 516 1.10
152050 G LR
Intematicnal
Euwtypasan Irv nestrmont Bk
11700  Fern Colpon) 24 697 BH 105
24 Rar e 1,06
Luntemissurg
Enimcpsann |y sl Bank
G0 | Foro Coupon) 30 Gad TR 168
Enncpon Irw evsdiont Bank
AR {Foro Coupon) HERSG 423 0B
Enncpusn lrvesimiont Bank
SO0 { fero Coupon) 1714 0.4

Enroposn Investminnt Bk
200 { Foro Coupon) 24 e OE3 105
Europasn Irvostminnt Bank

A0 {Lere Coupon) 7 3 01 033
Enropagn Irvosinaont Bank
SR | e oot el 4 Birh BT 1.065
135 0695 F43 5.0
Hathedands
Bk Moo landse Gasmesnion
FRM 2152080 15000000 063

15, (060 CeM} 0,63

United States
By Baank WV 2050020 {Fora

Cooupson) MHEIR00 106
By Bank NY 1082020 (oo

Conmpon 4 02 143 4138
Catssn Dis Dopals of

Consignations

VA0 { fare Colpon) THA0T. 42 .62
Calsgn Das Dapots of

Consinalions

A0 {Forn Coupon) 27 912 (33 118
Catsia Dis Dispcls ol

Coonssignentions

FURAE0 { foro Colpon) 210, R00 B0 156
Kandls Furehng LLG

W00 (Soro Coupon) 3.6a0,507 016
Kedls Funding LLG

T 2020 {Zore Coupon) 24,837 500 105

Kells Fantng LLC

NS00 | Zre Coupon) 28 653 BIG 131
Kells Fundang LLC

SPARI0R0 | i Colson)) 18,718 04 o

HIFWY hibermialional Fanamcs
ING 122020 ( fora
Colgon) 24,978 438 105

Trdnc i on pages X9 0 45 form @ inbegra parLof Tals inanosl §wiemants

[36]  BlackRock Global Investment Sarles
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Super Money Market Fund continued

Portfolio of Investments as at 31 January 2020

B ryeartie ged % af
Cost [ [
Hodding Description USD Assals Holding Description
United States condinved
USD 18475000 KFW klerviliorad Firusc Other Transfarable Securities and Money Markaet Instrumants
NG 2270020 (Foro BONDS
Comipsiay) 1634585 08D United States
LISD 200000 000 Nedolandsa USD E4572000 Federil Moms Laan Bank
Waaloisehapesh amk MV Descount Mobes
) 2020 {Zero Coupon) 10801156 OB AP0 { Fasrty Coapon) GETIGEE 07
USE 25 000,000 Modutandsa LS 751000 Frocdio Mas Decoun Notos
Watarschapsbank NV FRN. -~ PSR {Foro Coupon) PS0286 003
13020 25000000 106 LIS 16042000 Frechtin M Diseount Moles
USD 150000000 Maodotandss AMRR { Foro Goupon) iLg0r G OB
Wisborechapesbank NV UISD 94 050,000 Frocdie Mac Discount Botes
GG | oo Coupon] 14 9rh &67 053 W00 ( Fore Goupon) 073 533 058
LISD 1,150,000 MNodeikandse ' ’ 37 003 167 158
Waterschapsh ank Ny SE= 2 :
B0 | St Coupon] 11,118,731 047 | Total Bonds 37 73 167 158
USD 18300000 NEWEan 272020 (foro Total Cothr TrawesSoraltin Socnities and Morsy
Compsor} 10.206.043 OB | Markl istuments STAANRT 158
LESD 19035 000 NRYYBank 6rR2020 [(loia
Campon 140 e, S0 964 | g h s
USD 10609000 NHWEBank 12020 (Zeo evarse Repurchase Agreeman
Coupon} W0ETTENE 045 ] Unfiad Stabes =~ ) -
USD 17360000 NAWEank 342020 (Zaa LSO 200000000 NP Paribas 1.55% 322020 200000000 662
Coupon) frapd o6l 073 LIS 200,000,000 BolA Seeunies 1 56%
UISD 70 000,000 NRWBank 2280020 (Foro o e F00000.000  Ea4
Cictipeoi) 10 Al 045 0B LS [ 200,000 004 r.-".ﬁ'ﬁf" {lodal Magkels Inc )
USD 17 308000 NRWBank 872020 (Foro ] VETRIMAI 00000000 844
s— T T USD 106.000.000 Créeh Agricola SA 1.56% _
USD 40000000 CokB AG 12052000 (Zom L 100030000 460
Coupon] 20 M 667 168 USD 309000000 Wells Fargo 1 56% 3002000 300,000,000 1305
LESD 2 060 000 OalB AG %5200 (Foaro 1027 000000 4335
Coupon} 2072945 000 | yoa R Rispairchasn A + 1027 000000 43 35
USD 43790000 kB AG T2 [Faro e FRpRiEEn fgreems — =
Cauipon) 13 G5 503 058 Sgrawilies portioho ab amaonlisod cosd FATIREG O3 1060 17T
S0 19870 CuB AG 268 Fi
LS50 1947000 L{lfnm;ﬁ,n R (fero 10,776,043 05 Othar Mot | sabilitine (3085 102 A
ATA 017 376 20.01 Total Ml fasebs (LSO 268 BTAA00 10000
Totd Ciommproal Papars 1,152 183 064 490 08
Totil Transforabie Securibies and Mooy Markol
Instmamants Admited to an Offcial Slock Exchamga
Listirg or Daalt i on Anoliher Fagulated Markal 1308 576 426 5524
Sector Breakdown
as at 31 January 2020
Risoorsn Ropurchese Agroamants
Financaal
Gamerrimand
Socimtios portholo al amon ised cosl
Cher Ml Lialdies
Toro N el O Pl 309 00 &5 Powms e IndGgrae D £ of Ml 6 inancisl § ity
Annual report and audited financial statements [37]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organisation

BlackRock Global Investiment Senes (the "Fund’) is a fonds
commun de placement formed under Lthe ks of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembowg, The Fund s set up under Part Il of the
law of 17 December 2010 relating to undeiakings for colbective
investmenl as amended (the “Z2010 L aw”). The Fund qualiies as
an allernative imvestment fund (AR in acoordance with
Directve 2011/61/EL of the European Parllament and of the
Coundl of & June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund
Managers (AIFMDT and the Luxemboug law of 12 July

2013 on alternabive imvestment fund managers as amended (the
2043 Law™)

Tha Management Commpany 15 nod the allernalive invasiment
mamager of the Fund. To comply with the requarements of the
Mesvay Markel Funds Regulation (Uhe “MMERT), the
Mamagement Company appointed BlackRook Asset
Mamagement lredand Limfled (the “AIFMT) as the allernaiive
investment fund manager The AIFM will provide and procure
the: prowision of imvestiment managemen services, induding
perifolio and nsk management fundions, for the Fund. The
AIFM is entitled o delegate is fundions, powers, disceions,
duties amd obiigations. subjed o AIFMD requiremems

As al 31 January 2020, the Fund offesed units in frve portfodios,
Global Allacation Portfolio, Global Equity Income Portolio,
Income Strategies Portfolio, Super Money Markel Fund and
World Income Portfolio (each a Portfolla” and colledively the:
Porifolios™) . Each Portiolio has ditferent investment objectves
and invests m different types of Imestments.

Each Portiolio is a separate pool of assets and s represented
by sepaiate unils of each Portfolio which are divided o unit
clasaes as dotalled on page 49,

The dasses of unis have equivalent rights in the Portiolios. bt
carry different fealures and chaging strucures, which are more
fulty descbed in the Fund's Prospecius.

Significant events during the year

Effective 28 February 2019, Graham Bamping was appoinied
a5 Chairman of the Board of the Directors of the
Mafsagednent Codnpsamy.

A new Prospectus and Management Regulabions were issued
an 1 July 219 to reflect the changes implemented in
compliance with the MMFR

Effective 1 July 2019, the Super Money Market Fund was
classified 2% a short term Public Debl Constan Net Assel
Walwe Money Marke! Fund ("CHNAY MMFT) under MMER. This
tansition has pol esulled in & change in accounling policy ko
e Portiolio however it has introduced more stingent
procedures designed o inc ease ranspaency and
supevigion of the Pertfolio’s liquidity. This is dischosed Turiber
in Mote 2.

¥

Effective 19 September 2019, Francine Keiser resigned from
ihe Board of Direclors of the Management Compsany

= Effesctive 30 Seplember 2019, the benchmark lor Super
Money Marked Fund has been changed from iMoneyM el First
Ther Retall Only Index (USDY o IGE BolAML US T-Bil
0-3 Month

= Effedive 10 Odiober 2019, Helen Laes-Jones was appodnted
as Directer of the Board of the Management Commpany

As part ol an intemal restrudunng with Lthe aim 1o streamline
Slate Street’s banking entity strucure acoss Europe. Stale
Streel Bank Luxemboung S.C.A  in their capacly as the
Fund's Deposilary and Adminisirative Agent. merged into
State Streel Bank nternational GrbsH with offect from

4 Newvemnbar 2019 (the Merger Date). Since the Merger Date,
Siale Streel Bank niernational GrbH continues io carry oul
the depositany and administrative agent funclions through
State Streel Bank nternational GrmbH, Luxemboung Bramch.
As legal successor of the Depositary and Administrative
Agent, State Streel BEank Intamational Grobi, Lusembearng
Eranch has assumed the same duties and responsibiiies,
and has the same rights under the existing agresments with
thie Fund . Any agreermsnts n place with the Depositary and
Adrranistratve Agent have been ransferred 1o Stabe Street
Bank Imernational GmbH, Luemboury Branch by operation
of laww. State Stecl Bank Inlanaticnad GmbH, Lusembourg
Branch, iz supervised by the Ewopesn Ceniral Bank the
German Federal Financial Services Supanvisony Autherily
{BaFin} and the German Cenlral Bank and has been
authorsed 1o ad as Depogitary and Administrativve Agent by
the CSSF in Luxembourg, Stale Sreel Bank Inlernalional
GrnbH . Luxembourg Branch is registered in the Luxembourng
Commercial and Companies’ Register (RCS) under numbser B
1446 1846,

Effective 12 December 2019 Halen Lees-Jones resigned from
the Board of Directors of the Management Company

Eftedive 13 December 201%, Helen Pring was appointed as
Director of the Board of The Management Company

Effesctive 7 January 2020, Leon Schwab resigned from the
Board of Directors of the Management Company:

= A new Prospecius was issued on 15 January 2020

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles
The Inancial slatements have been prepared in acoaydance

with generally accepled accounting principtes in Luxembourg
and with tha legal and regulatony requirements ralating to the

preparation of the finandal slalements as prescribed by the
Luxembourg authonties bor Ludamboung investiment companias
and include the following skanficant scoounting policies:

{a) Valualion of Investments and Other Assels

Theix Fund’s imvestrments and other assels are valued as follows:

Annual report and audited financial statements  [39]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

Non-Money Market Portfolios

+ Term loans are nol lisled on any searities exchange. [n
detesmining the Nel Assel Value (MAVT). the Portfclio utilises
ihe valuations of tesr keans furmished by a pricing service
approved by the AIFM. The pricing service lyplcally values
termm koans at the bid peice when quolations are readily
avallable, Term boans for which quolations are nol readily
avallable are valued at fair markel value on a consistent basis
a5 delermaned by the pricing service using pricing matrices o
dedesrmine valuations. The procedures of the pricing services
and fs evalualions are reviewsd by the lnvestment Adviser of
the relevant Portfolio {the Tnvestimant Adviser) under the
general supervision of the AIFM. The AIFM has determined in
g Faith that the sae of a picng sendce is a Fair redhod of
determining the valualion of term loans,

= Portfolio secumilies consisting of equilies. bonds and olher
dedt instruments (olhes than shon-temm obligations but
incheding listed ssues) may be valued on the basis of prices
furnished by one or more pidng services which detenmine
prices for normal, instilutional-size rading units of such
securibes using marked information, ransaciions o
oomparable secunties and vanous relalionships between
socurities thal are generally recognised by msttutionsal
Iraders;

¥

Portfolio secuatlies that are listed on stock exchanges or
traded on olher regulated markels are valued at the last
known price on such exchanges or markets as of the dose of
e business day immeadiately preceding the valuation date
wilh the exceplion of Global Equity Inossme Portiolio for which
securles ae valued al the valuation dale the ast known price
as of 4.00 pome Lueemmbsoung time (4PM CET” or, in each
case, the “Relevant Time"), If there are no such sales of a
particular security, the value af such secunty will be the last
avallable bid price of the Relevant Time or, in cerfain
circumstances, such porlfolio seanities are valued al the lasi
sala price on the exchange thal is the primary market for such
securities, of the last quoled bid price for those secumies fo
which the Dwvardhe-Countes ("OTCT) marked such as MASDAC
is the primary market for Bsled secunties.

* Investiments mopen-ended collecive imestment schemes are
valued on the basis of the last avallable nel assel value of the
units of such colleclive investrent schems;

¥

Feced income securiiles that are nol listed on slock exchanges
of traded on other requlated markels are valued al the last
available bid price o yield equivalents obitained from one o
more dealers o pricing services. Securilbes raded in the OTC
marked are valped at Lhe Bst avallable bBid price. In cases
whese seauriles ane Uraded on more than one exchange, the
securiies ae valued on the exchange designated by or under
the direction of the AIFM as the pramary masket. Portiolio
securities thal are raded both in the OTC market and on a
shock exchange are valued according 1o the broadest and
mersl representalive marked,

[40]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Series

= When magkel quolations are not readily avaiable o the AIFM
delermines thal the independent markel quotalion does nol
reflect fair market value, the AIFM will, in acoordanes with
applicable laws. delermine a talr markel value for thal assel or
Hiatility When determining the price for such an asset of
liability. the AIFM may use one or more of avarely of Fair
valeation methodologies (depending on lacdons inclusding (he
assel lype). The AFM might, for exarmple, price the assel
brassed on the onginal costof the invesiment o it might use
proprietary or third-parnty medels, mcluding models that rely
upson dired. porticlio management pricing Inpuls and which
reflect the significance atinbated Lo the vanous fadors being
cofaldered by the AIFM when it values the assel andior
liahility, 3= well as certain assumptions. The AIFM might also
use prices of adual, execited, histoncal ransadions in the
assel andior liabilily (oo relaled or comparable assels andior
liabilities) s & basis for valualion of even use, where
appropriale, an appralsal by a third party expenenced in the
valuation of simiar assels andlor kabdities

As al 31 January 2020, the adpsted far value applied 1o certain
securilles andfor derrvatives are disclosed in the Lalle below

ofl Ret

Falr value Agselty

Curency

rcome Sirbeges Porfolo UED | 487286 04

Pleasa refer to the Portiolio of Investments section for further
delalks of the secumilies

Super Money Market Fund

= The AFM has established proceduwes designed 1o stablise, o
the exient reasonably possible and in accordance wilth the
MMFR. the Super Money Markel Fund's price per unil as
compulad for the purposa of subsaiplions and redemplions at
LSO 1 (e "constant NAYTY. NAY s rounded io the nearest
percanlage poind, of il equivalent in curren oy Lerms,

The Por tholio's underying securities and money market
instrumends are valued based upon thair amorlised cost. This
involves valuing an instrument a1 its cost and thereafter
assuming a conslant amodlisation lo malurly of any discount
of premium, regardless of the impad ol Budusting interest
rales on lhe market value of the ingruments. While this
riethod provides certainty in valuation, i may resull in perods
duning which value, as determined by amoilised cost, is
higher of kower than the price the Super Money Marke Fund
would recetve if i sold the instrumssnt:

Effective 1 July 2019, the Portbolio is classilied as a short term
Pulbdic: et CNAY MME and complies with the requirements
under MMEFR. As a result of this, the AIFM has intioduced
additional prudent and rigorous liquidily managenent
procedures (o ensure compliance with any Byuidity thresholds
applicabla io the Portlolio;
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= To assess whether the assels of the Portfolio are sulficently
liquid to meet reasonably foreseealde redermplions and nat
force assels from being quidated al discounted prices, the
wolalility of the Poifolio's assets is frequenily monitored. The
AIFM may also apply one o more of the tollowing messures

impersing liquidity lees on redemplions thal adequately
refled the cost to the Portiolio of achieving Bquidity and
ansure thal the unitholders who remsm in the redevant
Pew tholio are nol unffarly disadvaniaged when olher unit
hodd ers redesrm thelr units during the penod;

I, within & period of 90 days, the total duration of
suspensions exceeds 15 days, the Super Money Markel
Fusnd shall autonmatically cease b be a shorttemn Public
Dbt CHAY MMF and the AIFM shall inform unitholders of
this facl.

v

after the: Board of Directors of the Managemment Compainy
of the Porttolo has dedermined its course of adion with
regard o atove apoints. it shall promply provide deails of
its decigon to the compelent aulhority of the Porifolio:

mprersing redemplion gates (that limi the smount of units o
b redecmed on any one working day o & mesdrmm of
10% of the: units of the Portiolio for any perod up (o

15 workeng days;

= irrgposing a suspension of redemgdions bor any penod of up
to 15 working davs; or

takirg no irmmediate acion other ihan fulfilling he obligation
laid down in Article 24 {23 of the MMFR

The Poatlolio caloulates a shadow NAY whereby underlying
socurities and money makel ingdruments are valued based
U @ o k-fo-market price. In compliance with MMFR
regguirerments, the diffetence between the constant MAY per
unit and the: NAY per unil caloulated using mark-do-meanked is
memdiored and published daily onthe websile of the

MMF : www blackiock com

All Portfolios
+ Cash is valued al its nofminal annou;

* Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreemenls
are valued al cost plus acorued interest. Recebable and
payable balances relaled lo repurchase agresments and
reer s repurchase agresments are induded in the Stalement
of Mel Assels respedvely under the caplions "Hecetvable for
irvesiments sold” and Payable for irvestments purchased”
The accrued interest from reverse repuichase agresments is
inclsded in the Statement of Nel Assels under the caplion
“Interest and dvidends recervable”,

¥

Liguid asses such as money malkel nsliuments are vaued
on an amoilised oosl basis,

Ll

Asgets which incude, in particular, inlerest and dividends
recedvable, receivable for invesiments sobd and recetvable for
Furd units subsenbed e valued at nomanal value,

¥

Liatilies which indude, in particular, payabde for investiments
purchased. payable for Fund unls redeemed, imerest and
dividends payaltde are valued al nominal valye.

(b} Realized gains amd losses on Investments

Mel realised gains and losses on sales of mvesiment s have
been dolermined on the basts of the average aost method,

(e} InoormeExpense from lvestmenls

Theet Fund takes credil for income from its mmvestments on the
Tolkowiing basis

= Interes) noome s accued daily and includes the amorsstion
o a straight-lne basis of premiunms and accredion of
digeniints.

bank interest is recogmsed on an accrual basis and includes
Interast income rom reverse repurchase agresments;

= dividiend income is acciued on the ex-dividend date and |5
shown net of withholding (ax;

= Ivcommee from revesse repurchase Wansadions is mduded in
the Statement of Operations under the caplion “Bank
Il et

an interest rate diferential CIRDS s the difference innlerest
rates bilween lwo similar interest besring securities which
arises from the curmency hedging process eq. if the 1 month
intefest rate on USD s 0 25% and on AUD It is 1%, then the
implied IRD is O 75%. Traders in the foreign exchang e marked
use IRD's when pidng loewand escchange rales. IRDs can be
posiibve, mil or negative. Inclusion of 1BDs in devidends. may
comstitute a payrment from capilal in some junsdicions. IR0 s
recoded as rmiscelaneows lees in the Stalement of
Operalions and Changes in Net Assels

{d} Financial Denvalbe Instruments

Duming ke wear, e Fund has emtered inbo a number of forwand
foregn exchange ransacions and lulures contiacts, Open
futures contracts are valued al the fair markel value o close the
conlracds on the accounting date. Surpluses/delicils asing from
these and dosed unsetiled contracds are taken 1o pet unrealised
appreciaion/{depredation) and ae induded under assels or
liabiliibes {25 appropiate) in the Stalement of Nel Assets. The
nel change in wnrealsed appreciation of depreciation and the
ned realised gains of bosses on seitlement or closing
tramsactions of forwand foregn exchange ransactions and
futures contracts are presented in the Sialement of Operations
and Changes in Nel Assels,

Duming e wear, e Fund has entered inlo swap agreements o
eacchamge e redusn generted by one mstunment for the returm
generaled by ancther investment. The Fund can wiite credit
defaull swaps "COSET and purchase CDS. When the Fund
willees and'or purchases a CDS, a series of premiunes is paid 1o
of paid by the Fund, in return for a payment contingent on a
credit event {predefined i the agreement). The premiums are
included in the cost of CDS. Where possible, swaps are marked
i market based upon daily prices oblained from thisd party
pricing agents and verlied againgd the actual markel meke.
Where such quotations are nol avalable swaps are priced
baged upon daly quolations from the markel maker In both
cases changes in quotalions are recorded as net change in
unrealised appredation or depredalion in the Statement of
Operalions and Changes in Nel Assels. Net realised gains or

Annual report and audited financial statements  [41]
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logges on matuily of termination of the swaps and the infeest
earned in relalion o the swaps are presented inthe Stalement
of Operalions and Changes in Net Assels

Each Portfolio may seil call options and purchase pul oplions on
sock ndicos 1o seck o hedge portfolio securies against the
irmpad of anticipated general price doedines inequity mearkets o
specilic ndustiy secors thereol. Options on indices aie simika
Iy oplion s on securities excepl thal on exelcise of assigniment,
the parlies lo the confrad pay or receie an amount of cash
equal to the difference batwean the dosing value of the index
and the exerciga price of the oplion limes a specified mulliple
The elfectiveness of & hedge amploying stock index oplions will
depend primanily on the degree ol correlation belwean
rmeveiments in the value of the index undedying the option and
in thez porticn of the portfolio being hedged. Armong other
facdors, the degree of correlation with resped 10 conver il
secuiliies will be afleded by the degree lo which the market
value of portlobo securilies s adtribul able Lo thedr aomaarsion
vabue. The nel change in unrealised apprecialion of deprecialion
and the ned realised gains or losses on expiralion or closing
Iransaclions of oplions are presented in the Salement of
Operalions and Changes in Nel Assels

(&) Foreign Exchange

The cost of investments in currendes other than the curiency of
denomination of the respedive Portlolio has bean translated at
the rates of exchange nling at the time of purchase, Markel
value of investments and other assels m currencies olher than
ihe: currency of denomination of the respective Portfolio have
hezen translated af the exchange rate prevailing a the Fortfolios
valuation polil iy Lisemboung @8 al 31 January 2020, The ned
change in urealised apgeecalion or depredalion and the ned
realised gains or losses on disposal or selllement of other
assels or labiliies in currencies other than the curency of
denomination of the respecive Portiolio are presented in the
Statement of Operations and Changes in Nel Assels

Income and expenses in currencies ofher than the carrency of
dencmination of the raspediee Portholio have baen anslated al
the: rates of exchange prevalling on ransaction date.

Differant exchange rates are resuliing Irom the prtcng malrix
and different valuation points between the different Portfolios. In
ihe below table, the 4PM CE T excchange rales on 31 January
2020 ane presented for Global Allocation Portliolio, Global Equity
Income Porticlio and YWorld Income Portfobo, the 5PM CET
exchange rales on 30 January 2000 are presented bor Income
Siralegies Porllolio and Super Money Market Fund

The: following exchange rales were used to ranslale the
investments and other assels and olher habililies for all
Portiolios denominated n asrrencies ollier than the base
aurrency of the respecive Porlfolio as al 31 January 2000

CHETOED

AL 07REZ Lk e

CHF | S | e

DK 0. 1em a1

EUR | a0 [R[ist =]

GER | H&3m0 1 310454
[42] BlackRock Global Invesiment Saries
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IL% 2R 023
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WA HTE S A QOS31E2
ZEK 0 bET7 ERlrcsis
S DFE4E) DrEEEa
™D (a3 IE QOEEa
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{f} Combined Financial Statemenis

The Combined Finanaal Statements of the Fund ane expressed
in USD and indude the total of the imandal statements of the
different Portfolios

{0y Defemed Onganisational Expenses

Dederred orgamsalional expenses are capitalised and ane
armariised on & slraghl-line basis over a five year peniod. As al
31 January 2020, all Porticos had fully amortised theis deferred
ociganizalional expenses

{h} Income Equalsalion

Each Portfolio follows the accounting pracdics of equalisation 1o
preseent ihe undistributed income per unit from fucuating soledy
by remson of subsciplions and redemplions of its umils. Thisis
accomphshed by mamtaining an equalisation account for the
relewant Portfolio, The equalisation account is aedited with thal
porlion of the proceeds of subscitbed units representing the net
undistributed income per unit of those units, and is debited with
that portian of any redermplion payinent repiesenting nel
undistributed income per unit of the redeemed units. A portion
of the dividends dedared by a Portiolio sy consist of amaounts
presdously credied 1o the equalisation acoount. The yield
reepoed o ivestons will indude amounts pakd oo mel inoome
as well as any amount paid from the equalisation account

The Incomea Equalisation is induded in the Moverments in unil
capital in the Statement of Operations and Changes in Net
Aszzels

{1} Unfunded loans represent the remaining obligation of the
Fund 1o the bomower

Az al 31 January 2020, the Income Strategies Portfolio had an
unlunded loan of USDH 316,295 discdosed under “Payable for
unfunded loan” in the Statement of Nel Assels

3. Management Company and Investment Advisers
{a) Managemen Company

BlackRodk Fund Management Company SA. is the
Management Company of the Fund. Pursuant 1o the
Management Regqulations, the Management Company has
agrecd o manage the Fund’s Portiolios for the exclusive
acmunl of the relevant Unitholders. The Depositary and such
olher agents as appropiate, indueding Destibuions of the Fund's
Unitz in and outside Japan are appointed by the Managemen
Company. The Managaement Company has delegated the
appotntment of Distobutors to the Principal Distributor
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BlackRock Furnd Mansgemenl Company S A 1S 3 wholly owned
subsidiary within the BlackRock Greup and is regulated by the
Commizsion de Surveilance du Secteur Financier {"CSSF")

() AdFM

The: Manzagement Company has appointed BlackRock Assel
Mamagemsent Iredand Limndled as (he allernative investment lund
manager o provide and prooure the provision of imeestment
managens=nt services, including portfolio and nsk management
furections, bor the: Fund within the meaning of the AIFMD. The
AIFM is entifled 1o delegale its funciions . powers, discrelions.
duithes A obdigations. suljed o AIFMD iequirements

The: AIFM i3 & wholly cwned subsidiary within the BlackRock
Group and is authonsed by the Central Bank o Ireland

The: AIFM I pald ol of the management fee due to the
Management Company, &8 cullined in Mote 4

(e} Investment Advisess
Subjed to the overall respomsbility of the AIFM, each of the

Poatfolios receies invesiment advisory senvices from the
Investment Advisers:

e ybmemd Adviaer

Giobel Allctaiion Podfoko
Gotal Equty Income Podichio
Ircomi Hralegus Podlolo
Sl Moy Markl Fued
‘Word | ncomeé Postiohs

EiackRock Japan Do, Lid

BlachRodk it mir] Wbsrsge mend (LK) Limilad
BlickRock Frawcial Maragemerd. [ng
BlackRock Fesrcsl Mefdgeme, Int
BlackRock Japan Co, L

The Iverstment Advisers form part of the BlackRodk Growp

The Investment Advisers are each paid oul of the ranagement
fee due to the Management Company, as oullined in Nole 4

4. Managenment and Distribution Fees
{a) Managemen fees

Dumingg thia wear the Fund paid management faes o the
Managemenl Company,

The: level of managemen fee vanes from 0.45% to 0.75% per
annumof the NAV with the exceplion of Class F units, which do
ol pay @ manadement lee bul rather 5 fee o the Investment
Adviser or alfilisles under a separale agreemeant. The level of
managensEnt free vanes according o which Portfolio and unit
class the investor buys. These lees accrue daily, are based on
the NAY of the relevant Portfclio and are paid monthly, The:
Fund's AIFM and Investmenl Adviser fees are borne by the
Management Company and padd thiough the managemen fee.

() Disaribution fees

The: Management Company has also emered into  Distribation
Agreement with BlackRock Invesiment Management

(LK) Lirfted {the Principal Distibutor™. The Principal
Distribador may condude contraciual arrangements with corlain
Distribanors for the distnbution of units outside the LS such as
the Japadese Distribulors (26 disclosed on pages 3 o 4)

The leve] of distibation fes vanes from 0.25% 1o 1.00% per
annuim, of the NAV, with the exceplion of Classes AD units, D
units, F units, Institutional | units, which do not pay a disinbation

feex Thee level of distiilsution fee vanes acoording o which
Pertbolio and unit dass the investor buys. These fees accrue
dally, are based on the NAY of the relevant Porllolio and are
peadled qpuzstleny

The mranagpement and distibution lees per unil dass lor cach
Pratbolio zre disclosed in detall in the Fund’s Prospecius.

Fou the penod rom 1 February 2019 1o 15 Januay 2020, a fea
walver on managemen fees, distibution lees was m place for
the Super Money Market Fund's Comemon, Current and
Institutional | units, This walver ceased alledive 16 lanuary
2020,

5. Coordination Fees

The Managemen! Company has entered nlo an agreement with
BlackRock Operations (Lusembowg) 5.2 ol (BROL") pursuant
o which BROL . under the duedion of the Board of Diredors of
the Management Company, provides ceflaln oofporate aind
admingstrative coordination services on behalf of the Fund

The coordination fee rale is 0.025% of the average dally NAV of
the Fund (excluding Class F units), per annum

6. Administration Fees

The Managemenl Company has appointed Stale Sirest Bank
International GrbH, Luxemboung Branch, 49, avenue J-F
Kennedy, L-1855 Luxernbours, as e Fund's Adoinisirative
Agent in Luxemboung (o assisl the Managemen! Company al ils
principal office m Luxembourg with general adminisiralive tasks
pursuant Lo the Administration Agresmenl, against changing
tisnal lees bor these services.

7. Audlt Fees
Deailed beknw are the fees padd 1o Deloitte Audit 5.4 o, for the
wear ended 31 January 2020,

Audd and sudd relabed senaces [snchuding VAT)
Ho-audt senaces b

8. Depositary Fees

The Managemenl Company has entered into the Depositary
Agreerment wilh ihe Dapositary, Stale Sired Bank International
GmbH, Luxembourg Branch. This agreement was amended
effedive 17 January 2019 in line with the appointment of the
AlFM

The Depostiary Agreemeant provides thad all securnties and cash
of thae Fund, othar than cash held in rading acoounts or hald In
any operaling accounts bor expenses of dividend disbur serment
aceounts {which may be mainlaned & other banks), are (o be
held by o to the crder of the Deposilary provided thal the
Managemsant Company may Hace cash inovernight call
actounts of on lerm depost with olher banks approved by the
Depositary, who shall continue 1o supervise such funds. The
Depositary is responsible for the collecon of prncipal and
Income on, and the payment for and colledion ol proceads o
sedcurities bought and sold for the Fund. In Bine with the
compliance of the AFM and the Fund’s compliance with AIF ML
the Depositany’s role pursuant o AIFMD enhances Unitholder
protedion and mdudes the responsibility 10 safekeep the assels
of thae Fund and hold in custody all inandal instruments, cash
and oiher assels of the Fund (the “Safekeeping Fundion®)

Annual repor and audited financial stalements [43]
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The: Despeorsilany chaig e the: Fund fees for these serioes in
acoordance with its usual rales expressed as a fraction of a
percentage per annumol the nel assels of the Fund. The
Deposiiary may appolnd one of more conrespondent banks, and
it is expected thal the Depostary retains a correspondent bank
in the United States, whose lees shall be barne by the Fund. As
part of its Safekeeping lundkon, the Depostary 15 liatde o the
Fund lor the loss of financial instruments which aee held in
custady. This enhanced role of the Depositany leads (o an
increase in deposiary fees by up to 000629, payable by the
Fund.

9. Transactions with Related Partles

Thea: ultirmstes lolding oompany of the Management Company,
the: Principal Distributor, the AIFM, the Investrment Manages and
the Investment Advigers is BlackRodk, Inc., 3 company

incer porated in Delaware, USA PNC Financial Services

Group Inc. is a substantial shareholder in BlackRodk, Inc. Whan
arranging tansadions in securilles bor the Fund, companies in
the PNC Group muay have provided seamsities brokerage, fonskgn
exchange, banking and other services, or may have aded as
principal, on thedr usuzl terms and mey have benedited
thesetrom. Commissions have been paid io brokers and agents
in acoordance with the relevant marked praciics and the benefit
of any bulk or othes commission discounts or cash comaissions
rebates provided by brokers or agenls have been passed onlo
the Fund. The services of PNC Group companies could have
bz wsed by the Imvestment Advisers whene L was considered
appropiate Lo do so provided that thedr commissions and other
terms of business are genarally comparatde with those avallable
froon umassocaled brokers and agents in the markeds
concerned. and this is consistent with the above policy of
oblaining besl net results

Dluging thes year there have been no ggmficant ansackons
which were oulside the ordinary course of business or which
were ol on nommal cormimercial Lerms.

10, Taxes

Unadier present Lusemboung law and practice, the Fund s not
liable to sy Luxemnbourg cedinary incoms of capélal gains lax,
nor are dividends paid by the Fund subject to any Luxemboung
withbolding ta, However, the Fund is subpect 1o & subsonplion
tax {"lane dabonnemen ) of 0.05% per annum levied on the
MAY of the: Fund af the kast day of each calendar quarter, in
acoordance with the 2010 Law, excepl in resped of Super
Money Markel Fund as well as in resped of the Portfolios or
unit classes reserved for insitulional investors within the
meanng of Article 174 of the 2010 Law, on which a reduced Lax
of 0.01% per annem ks levied, For the vear ended 31 January
2020, the Global Alocaton Portfolio and World Income Por tiolio
have mol pand Lusgembourg lases, a3 no submenplion 2 is paid
on the assels held by the Fund in other undertakings for
collective investment already subjed tothatl taxin Luxemioug.

Unader applicable foreian lax laws, withholding taces may be
imposed on inteest, dvidends and capital gans al vaious
rales

11. Dividends

Supear Money Market Fund

The ned income i e, accrued interest income nel of aceued
expenses) 15 dedared as a dividend on each valuation dale on
all units outstamding on thal day o the Unitholders of recosd
Irmmmexdizately prear o the dally deter mination of MAVY per unit,
provided abasays that units shall be entitled o a dividend only

[44]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Series

froim the day on which their subscription is setiled poios (o
12 noon Luxembourg linee and that units redeemed shall nol be
enliled to receive the daly dividend declared on the setllemeant

day ol thelr redemplion

Hon-Money Market Portfolios

Thez ned income of the relevant other Postfolios consists of

{1} beres Sociied, dsooim eamed (Induding both oniginal
issue and markel discount) o olher income eamed, (1) less the
estimated expenses of the Portlolio {including management
fees). In resped of each dividend declared, the Board of
Directows of the Managermenl Company meay determine il and
o what extent, such dividend i% 1o be paild out of undigiributed
rE hinvestrmeent oo, realised and unrealied capital gains,
respediely inoeased of decreased by nel equalisation aedits
of debds

12, Credit Facility

As at 31 January 2020, Income Strategees Portfolio was entitled
o & credil facility of USD 65 000,000 from State Streel Bank
and Trust Company As at 31 January 2020, aloan of USD

O was drawn down (2019 USD )

A koan commitment fes s charged on a dally basts in relation 1o
this credit Fadlity which is incleded in the Statemeant of
Operalions and Changes in Nel Assels. The loan commilmesnt
fee consisls of 015% charged on the unused portion of the
cresdit faclity and the FED o LIBOR rate {depending on which is
Fighver) 4 000°% margin speesd on the wsed portion of the eredil
Facility.

The commitrment fee ks dischkos ed n the Stalement of
Operations under the caption "Loan commsiment lees”

13. Financlal Derivative Instruments and Efflcient Portfolio
Management Technlques

Each of the Portfolios may use dedivatives to hedge marke and
cifrency Nsk, and for the purposes of efficent por folio

I age el

The: use of denvalives may expose the Portfolios o a higher
degres of sk, In parlicular, dervative conlracts can be highly
wolalile:, and the amecunt of nitial mangin is generally small
relative 1o the size of the contrac so thal lransactions ane
geared. Areatively sanall markel movemment may have a
polentially larger impad on dervatives than on standard bonds
of equilies.

See further detals in the specific Podtlolio of lvestments.

14. Tranzaction costs

In order o achieve its ivestiment cbijeclive, a Portfolo will incur
ramsacions costs in refalion 1o frading acivily on its Portiolio of
investiments Disclosed in the table bedow are separaiedy
identifiabie ransaction costs incnmed by each Portfolio for the
yeal ended 31 January 2020 These include commission costs,
selflement fees. broker lees and depositary fees

ooy Temrmmetion ¢33l
Fobal Alocaton Porldka ush -
Giobal Equly Income Postiol LE=u] 4704
rcome Stridages Porfolo LED BEE
Super Monsy Madel Fund L= i -
World Income Porlobo UED —
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

15. Amounts due fromite Broker

The Porifolios rade dervalives with a range of counterparties
The counterparties 1o lorward foreign escchange ransactions
and awap conlracts are shown in the Portiolio of Investiments.

Cash collateral is paid o recebed on swaps 1o oo 2y
exposure by the counterparty (o the Fund or by the Fund (o the
counterparty, Due fromio Broker on the Slalement of Nel
Aggets conssts of cash collateral and margin paldireceied
froam the Fund's deanng brokers and various counternparlies

16, Subsequent events

The Board of Diredors of the Management Company has
asgesged the impacd of markel condiions arising from the
COVID-19 cutbreak on the Portfolos' abslity to meet their

investment objedives. Based on the latest avalable information.
the Portfolios continue to be managed in line wilh their
Investmenl objedies, with no dismplion (o the operations of the
Portfolios and the publication of net assel valises. Mo imestment
objedives are expeded to be altered and the Board of Diredors
of the Managemeant Company will continue 1o menitor the
performance of the Porilolios onan ongoing basis

Thege have been no other evenls subgequent 1o the inancal
year end which require an adjustment Lo, or disclosws in, thess
financial statlemems

17. Approval date

The: Inancial statements were approved by the Board of
Directors of the Managermsn Company on 19 May 2020,

Annual report and audited financial ststoments  [45]
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Appendix | — Unit Classes (Unaudited)

Unit Classes In lssue
As at 31 January 2020, the Fund offers the following unit
clagses

C Clags dizinbuling unil D
Common diatriputng unit n USD
| CurreniUnis |
Currant &ziwbuting unitin )
E T m— ;

3 AU w0
Insiiutional | Units
Instifubional 1| disint

L i o
1

uting unilin BED

Unit Classes Launched
Ihere were no unit dasses launched during the yea

Unit Classes Closed
These were no unit dasses dosed duing the year

Annual report and audited financial stalements [49]
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2(a)
2(a)

2(a)
2(a)
4,5,6,7,8

42
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1,479,554,113 159,096,454
1,479,554,113 159,096,454
662,256 71,212
108,342 11,650
1,480,324,711 159,179,316
239,379 25,740
2,887,227 310,464
1,766,907 189,996
4,893,513 526,199
1,475,431,198 158,653,117




EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 31

2019 31 2018 31 2017 31

( ) C ) ( ) C ) ( ) «C )
1,475,431,198 158,653,117 1,386,832,717 149,126,122 1,337,664,002 143,839,010

( ) ) ( ) ) ( ) )
1.00 108 1.00 108 1.00 108
1.00 108 1.00 108 1.00 108
1.00 108 1.00 108 1.00 108

37 42
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2019 31
1,386,832,717 149,126,122
2(c) 8,809,242 947,258
2(c) 22,972,452 2,470,228
31,781,694 3,417,486
6,929,309 745,109
2,361,141 253,893
183,762 19,760
46,933 5,047
41,172 4,427
80,351 8,640
10 146,972 15,804
358,727 38,574
152,317 16,379
173,415 18,647
31,735 3,412
10,505,834 1,129,692
3,192,096 343,246
7,313,738 786,446
24,467,956 2,631,039
2(a),2(b) 12,193 1,311
2(a),2(b) (1,554) (167)
10,639 1,144
24,478,595 2,632,183
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2(h) 2,337,170,447 251,315,938
2(h)  (2,248,571,966) (241,788,944)
88,598,481 9,526,995

11 (24,478,595) (2,632,183)
1,475,431,198 158,653,117
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2019 31
355,844 6,098 — 361,942
916,187,407  1,839,298,837 1,765,762,901 989,723,343
470,289,466 497,859,080 482,802,633 485,345,913

37

42
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2019 31
fonds commun de
2010 12 17 2010
2011
EU 2011/61
2013 12

2013

2018 2019 16
17

45

2019 17
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2019 31

9,315,099 2.75
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31

2019
.727650 0.719100
.760312 0.757518
.005379 1.001753
.153760 0.153056
-147900 1.142550
.310999 1.307000
.127447 0.127484
274774 0.272978
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0.014061 0.014054
0.009203 0.009125
0.000899 0.000896
0.052500 0.052252
0.110887 0.110095
0.743163 0.739864
0.032550 0.032522

0.075283 0.073648
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BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined

198,628

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
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(a

(8

0.45

0.25

0.75

1.00

0.025
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1855
49 49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2019 31

2019 31

61,000

2019 17

0.0062
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10
2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01 2019 31
11
12
()
(i)
12
2019 31
65,000,000 2019 31
2018 26,000,000
0.15 FED LIBOR

0.90
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13
2019 31

14

15

2019 31

80,117

3,219

16

17
2019 28

18
2015

500

2009
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2009
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Statement of Net Assets

as at 31 January 2018

Asnats
S OuilES DOrdakd M o0 2318081 573 AT Q02 S40 58,177 460
Unrealized appreciationf{deprecistion] [11,061.332) 38,709,988 i B56 B33
Sepunbes pordobo 38 marke value Ha) 2,308,030,341 55, 712426 104,034,114
Cagh 3 bark a3 11 452,875 144 485 1,211 458
L froem: broker 1§ Gt - 2,
Interest and dividends recehabie Ha) 4 585,210 - 145 384
Fecewable for irestments woid Haj §EEIATY 242812 512534
Fecenabie for Fund units subsonbed it 02,142 75126 =
Linresalisad appesciation o

Futures Contracis i 154 - -
Ctteer Bgsets 128,760 - 853
Total assuts 2700154 443 FEE, 174 540 108,508 361
Liahilitles
Cash owed to bank Ha) 239,378 - -
Ougstanding loan 12 - - -
Paryatile for unfunded laan 65 198,678 B -
Payabie Tor investments purthased a) B/53045%5 TT.387 1,312,835
Payable Tor Fund units rede emed bt 1] 1 038 568 353844 BRI
Dwvidands payabie Hal 2 403 853 = =
Unreatised depreciation on

Crpen fansarnd forsign exchange Barmachons 2 68801 - -
Svaps o arked vslue A 24 810 - -
Aeerued epeeges aod other §abknes 456748 4 574 530 1,274,895 277 .58
Tottal liabilities 19 270,202 1,706,326 1,938 092
Total et aes el 2370 554 200 364 466,623 103,965 269

Approved on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Management Company

e O™\

Ovector
oae 2 3 MAY 2019 Dae 2 3 MAY 2019

Tt nobea on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these finanond stalemeat
[10] BlackRock Global Investment Series
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Statement of Net Assets

as at 31 January 2019 continued

Aszets
e oS pordobo M oo 371 B33 147B554 113 31524 287
Unrealised appreciation/{deprecistion) (42,053 80T} - {2584 145)
Securities pordoka 3 rarkel value ) 328,768.435 1478554113 6,550,152
Cash 3L bark a3 10,056,730 - 40,2654
Cue froem boker L] SER - -
Inderest and dradends recesabls HAa) JBRT AN 662258 a0, 165
Recetvabie for ime stments sold Haj 4803 067 - 4318
Fecenais for Fund unis subscnbed Wal 107 EIG - -
Unrealised appeatianon on

Fuufe & Conracs ] 154 - -
Carer assats 19,065 108,343 -
Total asswts 8,604,008 1480,324,711 29084974
Liabilities.
Cash owed to bank Hal - 83T -
Cutstanding foan 12 - - -
Payatie for unfunded loan 1 128,678 = 5
Pyt for iirvisstrssnts purchasid ) 7,040,373 - =
Payable for Fund unds redeered 3] 331 58T - 4754
Cradends payable bt ] 1,565 052 1887207 41603
LUngadised depreciafon on

Cpen fonwand foreign exchange tansadions L] E8.501 - -
Swaps o market value ) 74,818 m -
drerued enpenses and other kabdtes 45678 1,858,551 1,766,207 180,403
Total liabilities 10,806 921 453,513 244,350
Tatal met ans ety 338,167 58T TATEA31, 188 26,550, 564

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these financol statemeats.
Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [11]
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2019

Glebal Allecation Portfollo
Total nat ass wte usD 418 552,160 FE6.650.238
Bl asset value per
i, Class non-distrbiting und UsD 14 50 1570 13.60
A Class non-dratributing unit &UI0 AU 16.58 1B05 15.58
A Class non-drstribulng uni JFY JFY 10205 1348 10018
Glebal Equity Income Portfolie
Total net asd et uso 183,966 265 131,523,008 141472570
Hel assed value per
A Class disiribubng uni usD 1337 1543 13.00
F Class deifribabig und uso 1518 1745 1458
Income Strategies Partfalle
Tatal nat ass et ED 30,167 547 TEE T ATE 413537 543
et st value per
& Ciass distriubng ung uso 538 572 HB4
A Class distrivubng uni S50 hedged SG0D wmn B3 10.80
AL Clats digtbuting unt uso By o7E B.63
B Clasa distibuting url s 5ar T3 585
C Class destrintenp urel uso am 1k 10,18
J Class distnbuting und uso 53 562 562
Super Money Markel Fund
Total nat assets [0 14TE 421,188 4,388 82 11T 1,337 B4 002
Het atoet value per
Cormrmon diibubng umt uso 100 L.od L.00
Current di fnibibng urid uso Lo 100 1.00
Irrstgerional | desiributng L usp L 100 1.00
Warld Income Partfalia
Total net assets LD 28,850, 564 35, TEY, 108 45 S04 529
Bt asiet value per
A Clases desiribubig und uso o 1118 1062
A Class grsriuting und ALD AUD {1 k=] LR e 10,85
A Class disirlubng un EUR EUR G40 ot .02

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these financol statemeats.
[12] BlackRock Global Investment Series
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2019

Het assets at the beginning of the year 2,260,056 873 419,552,168 121,523,008
Income
Bank inlirgs Hep B 825 304 12302 -
Bond and loan irtenssa Aeh 45,588,271 - -
Dnvidderats (req of withhadding L) Aoy 4828177 - 3578 469
Caronr inome 2738 o] -
Total incema 59,043,180 a7 D828 465
Expanses
Bk imerest Heh 4392 - 103
Misnagernert fegs 4 134T 1424 280 DaE 3483
Dhestritetionn fess ] 7580130 2,824 4@ MEIA83
Aderaresirabion fees B 107485 265 163 68,085
Auditees T 156656 ATH 14 465
Legal fees ngoar 4 308 11,258
Prriting and other reporting fees 270955 B4 588 .0
Suby seripon tio 10 351,355 - 27,244
Coordination fees - 556,599 a7 A68 10,878
Depogitary feed B 571,538 § 067 118,863
Teareher agent fess 5B AL 44 318 2.9
Laan commitrrent fees 12 Eal o - -
MncHlineous fens ELEAE BI8T 11 861
Total expenses before reimbursement 24,054 532 B A74 B4 BT0 307
Fernbursement of Epensss 4 3192095 - -
Tetal axpans &t afper réimburssment 20802438 6374 Gl BT0 307
et imvestment incomat{deficit) 3,140,714 B33 41T 2,558 182
Fealised gain on bmestments 2[ak 2o B A5 1TT 10,514 904 ez
Fealised (oss] on Investrents a). Amy (10es0mE) (290 056) [FAErE -]
Met realized gand lossh on
Futsres Contracts Hdy {1.526) = =
Foreign curmenoes and fansamd loreign eschangs irarmscton (). 2Hed {1 2aB w81y {1,052 818 {1,248 587)
Ot coniracts d) {5.EE0) - -
S0 DSBS 2y 29253) - -
Hat reall sed gainiloss) for the year NB25.129 5,181,030 4,085,768
Cnange in wreealised APPReciaton on lmesments (13038 2T} 145,205 843 (18523 910)
{Change in uneesdised {depreciabon] on investments (18982 F03) (552 0300 [LReb kT
Met change in unreaksed appreciationf{depreciation ] an
Fareign curmences and fanward loreign evchange transachons Hd). 2He) 241 0128 {33 {3,100}
Fubieme s Conlracts 2d} 154 - -
Swap FarEBnons 2d) {7 =3y - -
Crpieonis Coniraces 20d) o] - -
Net changs in unrealised apprecisdon{depreciaten) for the year {1,587 551) (45,747, Tos) {20.516887 )
Inreas ei{Dacranss] In met assets as 3 result of sperations 142,022,108} (42949, 7492} {14,162 557}
Movements In unit capital
T PecEpts 35 & resul of istue of urels 2(h} ZATT. T3 442 73,154,842 4,518,797
Met payments 5 8 resul of repurchase of unis h) [2435.738 454) (85,188 888) (34 818 3549)
Increas eifDecrease] in met assets as 3 result of mavements inunit capltal 41551 558 (12,433,764 {90,302 562}
Disnderds deciansd n (A0 B2 518) - (3085, 231
MHat assats at the end of the year 2300554 241 I LG8 62T 103,965 268

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these financol statemeats.
Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [13]
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 231 January 2019 continued

Hat assets af the beginning of the year 384,857,875 1386832717 36,761,108
Inzome
Bank interest He) - 8,808 242 1,133
Bond & loan intéress Aed ¥ 595 818 2AT452 =
Dirviddiards {reed of wilhhvoldng L) Ae) - - §,092,708
Ot mCome = = -
Total inceme 22,555,815 31,781,654 1,084 481
Expenses
Bk nieress Aed 4,789 = -
Managemert fees 4 2198415 6828308 158,164
Duestritmtion fees i 1214 84T 2381141 05 82D
Adrewtirabon fees 3 511,382 |83 76X 51,083
Al ey T 58,741 46233 19024
Legal fees 121,83 41,172 18,543
Prnting and other reporing fees: 11,755 BO3% &5 053
Hubscrpton i 10 177,135 148577 =
Coondsnation fees 5 9.517 asern 18049
Depotary fees a 275,741 15217 3ama
Trarher agent Teed 105,251 173415 12429
LOAN COMrement faes 12 308,452 - -
Miscefianecus fees «0, 151 T35 Th, 104
Total expenses before reimbursement 8715128 10,505 834 AN
Femburseirent of expentet 4 - 3,182 006 -
Total exp after reimbaur BI5,128 T30 A2
et investment incom o (deficit) 16,881, 553 24 46T G55 455 020
Frnlitad e on bneslmentd Hal, o) B, 258,002 12,183 154,861
Fealised [loss) on Imvestmerts Ha). 2w} {6.420,009) (1554) (74 53g)
ket realieed gand loss)ion
Futunes Contracts Hd) {1.926) - -
Foreign curmenoes and fonward foreign exchange transacions d). He) 721,528 - {258, 405)
Cptains Conlracts d) (5, ey = =
Swap AN EAENONS 2d) {29,853) - =
et reabised gaini{loss) for the year (1477, 145) 10,638 273,962}
(hange f weelsed SPOFECECN O | mements (10,998 654) - {300,581)
Change in urrealised (depreci sbon] on Investments. (10 548 65T) - (2353 829)
et change in unrealised appreciabond{depeeciabon) on
Foreign currences and fanward foreign exchange transactons Hdp, 2ed 44 168 - (6ay
Future s Confracts Hd) 154 = -
Sy BAN SRCHONE d) (7,838) - -
Cfadrs Conracs 2(d) a8z - -
Hat chamge in unrealis ed apprecivdoni{depreciztion) for the year (22,308,925} - 2,664 430
Inere el roxs o] Im Mot 2950t 25 3 result of sperations [6.904 352) 24478 595 {2477 5T2)
Movements In unit capital
Met recempls a5 3 result of ssue of unis 2hj A1 244 907 22337170447 U B4 348
et pryrmerts as @ resull of repurcharse of unis L f] (B0, 785400) | (2.248,570 988) (5.274)033)
Inereanai{Das reas o] in met asaets a8 3 result of movemsants inunit capital (20,540,453} 83598481 (3,629 584)
Orviderds daclansd 1" (21.2T5414) |24 TR 505) B3, 284
et assots at the end of the year J30, 16T ST 1,475 431,150 20,850 564

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these financol statemeats.
[14] BlackRock Global Investment Series
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Statement of Changes in units Outstanding
as at 31 January 2019

Glebal Allecation Portfalle

A Class nin-charituting usl VB.B36, 263 1 BE3 320 3913604 18,845,778
& Class non-isribating uml ALID B4 87 1850930 (e o 8,739,035
A Closs non-cistriouting um JY e IB5m514 10561 B4 R
Global Equity Income Portfalie

A& Class dainiuting unt 3,355 488 ATEEN BERTH 1863347
F Class chsfritnting unt 4,570,524 1,106,964 1,330,883 4, MERIS
Income Strategies Portfollo

& Clats detirinitng Lt B 55 0= 455 6a4 1272811 8,182 288
& Claes destritnang unt SG0 hedgped 25 B - N ATE 69,180
A0 Class dhsnbugng unt 524,300 %50 050 50
B Class detnbiging una Bar.am oA 153318 E44 87
C Cliss destnbating und 126,734 4 268 1534 152840
J Class chstritaiting unid 57 108 732 B.7E2275 B3 358 54 566871
Super Money Market Fund

Corrrninn o stribieng i 55 B 6,098 - 361842
Current destributing unt 216,187 407 1,639 268 937 1,765, 762,601 30,7113
Instusional | dsnbuging unt 470390 24 457855 080 4R2 800 633 485 L0913
Warld Incorme Partfalia

i Class destritnting unt 1 BEE 430 13,577 T3 885 1,380,080
& Class destributing urit U0 U B0E, 128 173 6 B2 1444 209
A Class debnibutng und EUR a4 57 116,380 B 7E8 263,130

Tt nobes on peges 37 o 42 form s integral part of these financol statemeats.
Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [16]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organisation

BlackRock Global Invesiment Series (the “Fund’) is a fonds
commun de placement formed under the laws of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembourg. The Fund is set up under Part Il of the
law of 17 Decernber 2010 relating to undertakings for collective
investrent as amended (the “2010 Law”). The Fund qualifies
as an alternative investment fund ("AIF7) in accordance with
Directive 2011/51/EU of the European Pardiament and of

the Council of 8 June 2011 on Altemative investrnent Fund
Managers {"AIFMD) and the Luxembourg law of 12 July 2013
aon alternative investment fund managers as amended (the
“2013 Law").

The Management Company is not the alternative investment
manager of the Fund. For the period frem 1 February 2018 to
16 January 2019, BlackRock Asset Management Schweiz AG
{the “Investment Manager”) had been appointed to perform
portfolio and risk management functions for the Fund, within
the meaning of the AIFMD. Effective 17 January 2018, to
comply with the requirements of the Money Market Funds
Regulation, the Management Company appointed BlackRock
Asset Management Ireland Limited (the “AIFMT) as the
alternative investment ind manager. The AIFM will provide
and procure the provision of investment management
senices, incleding portfolio and risk management functions,
for the Fund. The AIFM is entifed to delegate its functions.
powers, discretions, duties and obligations, subject to AIFMD
requirements.

Az a8l 31 January 2019, the Fund offered unifs in frve portfolios,
Global Allocation Portfolio, Global Equity Income Portfolio,
Income Strategies Portfolio, Super Money Market Fund and
Wrld Income Portfolio (each a *Partfolio™ and collectvely the
“Paortfcios”). Each Portfolio hasz different investment objectives
and invests in different types of Imestments.

Each Portfolio is a separate pool of assets and is represented
by separate units of each Portfolio which are drvided into unit
classes as detailed on page 45.

The classes of units have equivalent rights in the Portfolios
but carry different fostures and charging structures, which
are more fully described in the Fund's Prospecius,

Significant events during the year

+  Effective 17 January 2019, the Managemenl Coempany
appointed the AIFM into its rele as the Fund's alternalive
invesiment fund manager in compliance with the Money
Markei Funds Regulation.

¢ A new Prospeclus was issued on 17 January 2019,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with ganerally accepted accounting principles in Luxembourg
and with the legal and regulatory requirements relating to the
preparation of the financial statements as prescribed by the
Luxembourg authorities for Luxembourg investment companies
and include the following ssgnificant accounting policies:

{a} Valuaton of Investments and Other Assels

The Fund's investments and other assets are valued
as follows:

Non-Money Market Portfolios

Term boans are not listed on any securities exchange, In
determining the Met Asset Value ("WAVT), the Fund utilises
the valuations of term loans fumished by a pricing senvice
approved by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company. The pricing service typically values term loans
at the bid price when quotations are readily available.
Term loans for which quotations are not readily available
are valued at fair market value on a consistent basis as
determined by the pricing service using pricing matrices
to determine valuations. The procedures of the pricing
services and is evaluations are reviewed by the Invesiment
Adviser of the relevant Portfolio (the “Investment Adviser”)
under the general supervision of the Board of Directors of
the Management Company. The Board of Directors of the
Management Company has determined in good faith that
the use of a pricing service is a fair method of determining
the valuation of term loans;

Ponfolio securties consisling of equities, bonds and other
debt instruments (other than short-term obligations but
including Bsted issues) may be valued on the basis of
prices furnished by one or more pricing senvices which
determine prices for normal, institutional-size trading units
of such securities using market information, transactions
for comparable securiies and vanous relationships
beteween securities that are generally recognised by
institutional traders;

Portfolio securities that are listed on stock exchanges or
traded on other regulated markets are valued at the last
knowen price an such exchanges or markets as ofthe close
of the business day immediately preceding the valuation
date with the exception of Global Equity Income Portfolio
for which securnties are valued at the valuation date the
last known price as of 4.00 pm. Luxembourg time (in
each case, the “Relevant Time"). If there are no such
sales of a particular security, the value of such securnty
will be the last avaidable bid price of the Relevant Time
of, in certain circumstances, such portfolio secunties are
valued 2t the last sale price on the exchange that is the
prirmary market for such securities, or the last quoted bid
price For those secunties for which the Oved-the-Counter
("OTC") market such as NASDAQ, is the primary market
for listed securities;

Investments in open-ended collective investment schemes
are valued on the basis of the last available net asset value
of the units of such collective investment scheme;

Fi<ad income securities that are not listed on stock
exchanges or traded on other regulated markets are
valued at the last available bid price or yield equivalents

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [3T)]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

obtained fFom one or more dealers of pricing sendices.
Securities traded in the OTC marke! are valued at the lag
avaiable bid price. In cases where securities are traded on
more than one exchange, the securities are valued on the
exchange designated by or under the direction of the Board
of Directors of the Management Company as the primary
market, Portfolio securities that are traded both in the OTC
market and on a stock exchange are valued accordng to
the broadest and most representative market;

*  Securifies and assels for which markel quotalions are not
readily available are valued at fair value as determined
in good faith by or under the direction of the Board of
Directars of the Management Company.

As at 31 January 2019, the adusted fair value appliad to
certain securties andior dervatives are disclosed in the
table below:

| %ol
.
Inceene Strategies Portiotio | wso | asisoss | 275

Please refer to the Portfolio of Invesiments section for furthes
datails of the securnities.

Super Money Market Fund

+  The Management Company has established procedures
designed to stabslise. to the extent reasonably possible, the
Super Money Market Fund's price per unit a5 computed for
the purpose of sales and redemptions at one USD;

¢ The Portfolio's undertying secunities and money market
instruments are valued based upon their amorti sed
cost. This involves valuing an instrurment at its cost and
thereafter assuming a constant amorisation bo maturity
of any discount or premium, regardless of the impact
of Buctuating interest rates on the market value of the
instruments. While this methed provides cedainty in
valustion, it may result in periods during which value,
as determined by amorlised cosl, is higher or lower than
the price the Super Money Market Fund would receive
ifit seid the instrumaent;

+  Holdings are periodically reviewe d by or under the direction
of the Board of Directors of the Management Company
to determine whether a deviation exists between the MNAY
calculated using market values and that calculated on an
amorised cost basis. n the event it 15 determined that a
deviation exists. which may result in material dilution or
other unfair results to investors or existing Unitholders, the
Management Company takes such cofmective action by or
under the drection of its Board of Directors as is regarded
as necessary and appropriate, incudng the sale of the
portfolio instruments pricr to matunty to realise capital
gains or losses or to shorten average portfolio maturity,
withholding dividends, or establishing a NAV per unit
by using available market values,

[38] BlackRock Global Investment Series

All Portfolios
*  Cash is valued at its nominal amount;

* Liquid assets such as money market instruments are
valued at amortised cost basis;

* Azcats which include, in particular, interest and dividends
receivable, receivable for investments sold and receivable
for Fund units subscribed are valued at nominal value;

»  Liabillies which include, in particular, payable for imsesiments
purchased payable for Fund units redeemed interest and
dividands payable are valued at neminal value.

(b} Realized gains and losses on Investments

Net realised gains and losses on sales of investments have
been determined on the basis of the average cost methed.

(&) IncomeExpense from Investrments

The Fund takes credit for income from its investments on the
following basis:

interest income is accrued daily and includes the
amortisation on a straight-line basis of premiums and
accretion of discounts;

*  bank interest is recognized on an accrual basis;

+  dividend income is accrued on the ex-dividend date and
is shown net of withholdng tax;

*  an interast rate differential {(1RD%) is the difference in interast
rates bebween two similar interest bearng securities which
artsas from the currency hedging process e.g. if the 1 month
interest rate on USD is 0.25% and on AUD it is 1%, then
the implied IRD is 0.75%. Traders in the foreign exchange
market use |IRD's when pricing farward exchange rates.
IRD's can be positve, nil of negative. Inclusion of IRD's
in dividends may constitute a payment fom capital in some
jurlsdictions. IRD is recorded as miscellansous fees i the
Staternent of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.

(d} Financial Derivative Instruments

Dwring the year, the Fund has entered into a number of
forward foreign exchange transactions and fifures contracts,
Open futwres contracts are valued at the fair market value to
close the contracts on the accounting date, Surpluses/deficits
arising from these and closed unsettied contracts are taken

to net unrealised appreciationf{depreciation) and are included
under aszets or liabiliies (as appropriate) in the Statement

of Met Assets. The net change in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation and the net realized gains or losses on setfemeant
or closing transactions of forward foreign exchange transactions
and fitures contracts are presented in the Statement of
Operations and Changes in Met Assets.
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During the vear, the Fund has entered into swap agreements
o exchange the return generated by one instrument for the
return generated by another imvestment, The Fund can write
credit default swaps ("CD3" and purchase CDS. When the
Fund writes andfor purchases a CDS, a senes of premiums is
paid to or paid by the Fund, in retum for a payment contingent
on a credt event (predefined in the agreement). The premiums
are included in the cost of CDS. VWhere possible, swaps are
marked to market bazed upon daily prices obiained from third
party pricing agents and verified against the actual market
maker. Where such quotations are not available swaps are
priced based upon daily quotations from the market maker. In
both cases changes in guotations are recorded as net change
m unrealised appreciation or depreciation in the Statermant of
Operations and Changes in Met Assets. Met realisad gains or
losses on maturity or termimation of the swaps and the interest
eamned in relation to the swaps are presented in the Staternent
of Operations and Changes in Net Assets.

Each Portfolic may sell call oplions and purchase put options
on stock indices to seek to hedge portfolio securities against
the impact of anticipated general price declines in equity
markels or specific industry sectors thereof. Oplions on indices
are similar to options on securiies except that on exercise

of assignment, the parties to the contract pay or receive an
amount of cash equal to the difierence between the closing
value of the index and the exercise price of the option times
a specified multiple, The effectiveness of a hedge employing
stack index options will depend primarily on the degree of
caorrelation between movements in the value of the index
underfying the option and in the portion of the portfolio being
hedged. Among cther factors, the degree of correlation with
respect to convertible securities will be affected by the degres
e which the market value of portfolio securities is attributable
b their cenversion value, The net change in unrealised
appreciation or depreciation and the net realised gains or
losses on expiration or closing ransactions of options are
presented in the Statement of Operations and Changes in
et Azsets.

{e} Foreign Exchange

The cost of investments in currencies other than the

currency of denomination of the respectve Portfolio has

been translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the time

of purchase. Market value of investments and other assets

m currencies other than the currency of denomination of the
respective Portfolio have been translated at the exchange rate
prevailing at the Portfolios valuation point in Luxembourg as at
31 January 2019, The net change in unrealised appreciation or
depreciation and the net realised gains or losses on disposal
or setilerment of other assels or liabilities in cumencies other
than the currency of denomination of the respective Portfolio
are presented in the Statement of Operations and Changes

in Met Aszets,

Income and expenses in currencies other than the curmency of
denomination of the respective Portfolio have been translated
at the rates of exchange prevailing on transaction date.

Different exchange rates are resulting from the pricing matrix
and diferent valuation points between the different BGIS
Pertfolios, In the below table, the prior day close exchange
rates are presented for Global Allocation Portfolio, Global
Equity income Portfolio and World Income Portfolio, and the
4P CET exchange rates for Income Strategies Portfolio and
Super Maney Market Fund. The following exchange rates
were used to translate the investments and cther assets and
other liabdities for all Portfolios dencminated in currencies
other than the base cumency of the respective Portficlio as at
31 January 2015

cor uso.

AUD 0.727650 |

can 0.TBO3%2

CHF 1. 0053749

CEHK 01523780

EUR 1, 14750

GEF 1 310080 1307000

HKD 0 127447 0127454

LS 0274774 0272978

INE 0014081 0014058

JY 0008306 Q003125

KRW 0.000e89 0000EDE

MK 0052500 LRy ]

SEW 0110857 0110085
G0 0.7435163 0.7338064

TWD 01,03 2550 0032522

TAR 0075283 00736448

{f Combined Financial Staternents

The Combined Financial Statements of the Fund are
expressed in USD and include the total of the financial
statements of the different Portfolios.

(g Deferred Organisatonal Expenses

Dafarred of gantsabional expenses are capitalised and are
amorised on a straight-line basis over & five year period,
As at 31 January 2019, all Portfolios had fully amortised
their deferred organizational expenses.

{h} Income Egualisation

Each Portfolio follows the accounting practice of egualization
to prevent the undistributed income per unit from fluctuating
solely by reason of subscriptions and redemptions of its
units, This is accomplished by maintaining an equalization
account for the relevant Portfolio, The equalisation account

is credited with that portion of the proceeds of subscribed
units representing the net undistributed income per wnit of
those units, and is debited with that portion of any redemption
payment representing net undistributed income per unit of
the redesmed units. A portion of the dvidends declared by

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [38]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

a Portfolio may consist of amounts previously credited to

the equalisation acceunt, The yvield reponted to investors will
include amounts paid from net income as well as any amount
paid from the egualisation account.

The Income Equalisation is included in the Movements
in umit capital in the Statement of Operations and Changes
in Met Assets.

Iy Unfunded loans represent the remaining obigation
of the Fund to the bomrower,

Az at 31 January 2018, the Income Strategies Portfolio had
an unfunded lcan of ISD 128 628 disclosed under "Payable
for unfunded loan” in the Statement of Net Assets.

4. Management Company and Investment Advisers
{a} Management Company

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A s the
Management Company ofthe Fund. Pursuant to the
Management Regulations, the Management Company has
agreed to manage the Fund's Portfolios for the exclusive
account of the relevant Unitholders. The Depositary and
such other agents as appropriate, induding Distributors of
the Fund's Units in and oulside Japan are appointed by
the Managament Company. The Management Company
has delegated the appointment of Distributers to the
Principal Distributor.

BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.4 is a wholly
owned subsidiary within the BlackRock Group and is
regulated by the Commission de Surveiiance du Secteur
Financier ("CSSF).

{b} AIFM

The Management Company has appeinted BlackRock Asset
Management ireland Limited as the AIFM to provide and
procure the provizion of investment management services,
including portfolio and n=k management functions, for the
Fund within the meaning of the AIFMD. The AIFM is entiied
to delegate its funclions, powers, discrebons, duties and
obligations, subject to AIFMD requirerments.

The AIFM is a wholly owned subsidiary within the BlackRock
Group and is authonsed by the Central Bank of Ireland.

The AIFM is paid cut of the management fee due to the
Management Comparny, as outlined in MNote 4.

{c} Investment Advisers
Subgect to the overall responsibility of the AIFM, each of the

Pomtfalios receives investment advisory senvices Fom the
Imvestment Advisers:

[#0] BlackRock Global Investment Series

| BlackRock Japan Co , Lid
BlackRock Irvasiment
Management (U ) Lemitad
BlackR ock Financal
Managemerd. Inc

(Foriolo
Global Alocation Portlalio
Global Equety Incomé Porfolio

Incoma Sirateges Podtiolio

| BlackRock Financia

Super Monay Markel Fund
Maragoemerd, InG
| BlackRock Japan Co , Lid

Wedld Incoma Padlohs

The Investment Advisess form part of the BlackRock Group.

The Investment Advisers are each paid cut of the managament
fee due to the Management Company, as outlined in Mote 4.

4. Management and Distribution Fees
{a} Management fees

During the year, the Fund paid management fees to the
Management Compary.

The lewel of management fee varies from 0.45% to 0.75% per
annum of the NAY, with the exception of Class F units, which
do not pay a management fee bud rather a fee to the Invesimenl
Advizer or affiliates under a separate agreement. The level of
management fee vares according to which Paortfolio and unit
class the investor buys. These fees accrue dadly, are based

on the MNAY of the relevant Portfolio and are paid monthly.

The Fund's AIFM and Investment Adviser fees are bome by the
Management Company and paid through the management fee.

(k) Distribution fees

The Management Company has also entered info a Distribution
Agreement with BlackRock Investrment Managemeant {LIK}
Limited {the “Principal Distributor™). The Principal Distributor
may conclude contraciual arrangements with cerain Distrbutors
for the distnbutien of units cutside the U_S. such as the
Japanese Distributors (as disclosed on pages 3 to 4).

The level of distribution fiee varies from 0,25% to 1.00% per
annum, of the MNAY, with the exception of Classes AD units,

D wnits, F units, Institubional | units, which do not pay a
distribution fee. The level of distribution fee varies according

to which Portfiolio and unit clazs the investor buys. These fees
accrue daily, are based on the MAY of the relevant Partfolio and

are paid guartiery.

The management and distibution fees per unit class for
each Portfolio are disclesed in detail in the Fund's Prospectus.

A fee waiver on management fees, distribution fees was in

place on Super Money Market Fund's Commeon, Current and
Institutional | units.
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5. Coordination Fees

The Management Company has entered info an agreement
with Black Rock Operations (Luxembourg) 5.4 rl, "BROL")
pursuant to which BROL, under the direction of the Board

of Directors of the Management Company, provides certain
corporate and administrative coordination services on behalf
of the Fund.

The Coorcbnation foe rate i 0.025% of the svesage daily
&y of the Fund (excluding Class F units), per annum.

A fee waiver on coordination fees was in place on Super
Maney Market Fund’s Common, Current and Institutional | units,

6. Administration Fees

The Management Company has appointed State Streat
Bank Luxembourg S.C.A, 49, avenue JF Kennedy,
L-1855 Luxembourg, as the Fund's Administrative Agent
in Luxembourg to assist the Management Company at its
principal office in Luxembourg with general administrative
tasks pursuant to the Administration Agreement, against
charging usual fees for these services.

7. Audit Fees
Detailed below are the fees paid lo Delotte Audt Sa vl for
the year ended 31 January 2019,

Audt and sudil related services [excluding VAT) G 000

Hor-auid senices -

8. Depositary Fees
The Management Company has entered into the Depositary
Agreament with the Depositary, State Street Bank

Luxembourg 5.C_A. This agreement was amended effectve 17
January 2019 in Ene with the appointment of the AIFM.

The Depositary Agreement provides that all securities and
cash of the Fund, other than cash held in tradng accounts

or held in any operating accounts for expenses or dividend
disbursement accounts {which may be maintained at other
banks), are to be held by or to the order of the Depositary
provided that the Management Company may place cash in
ovemight call accounts or on term deposit with other banks
approved by the Depositary, who shall continue to supervise
such funds. The Depositary is responsible for the collection
of pnncipal and income on, and the payment for and colleclion
of procesds of securities bought and sold for the Fund. In line
with the compliance of the AIFM and the Fund's compliance
with AIFMD, the Depositary's role pursuant to AIFMD
enhances Unitholder protection and includes the responsibility
o safekoap the assets of the Fund and hold in custedy all
financial instruments, cash and other assets of the Fund (the
“Safekeeping Function”).

The Depositary charges the Fund fees for these services in
accordance with its usual rates expressed as a fraction of

a percentage per annum of the net assets of the Fund. The
Depesitary may appoint one or more comespondent banks, and
it is expected that the Depositary retains a correspondent bank

in the United States, whose fees shall be borne by the Fund.
Ag part of its Safekeeping function, the Depositary is liable to
the Fund for the loss of inancial instruments which are held
in custody. This enhanced role of the Depositary leads to an
increase in depositary fees by up to 0.0062%, payable by
the Fund,

8. Transactions with Connected Parties

The ultimate holding company of the Management
Company, the Principal Distributor, the AIFM, the Investment
Manager and the Investrnent Advisers is BlackRock, Inc.,

a company incorporated in Deleware, USA. PNC Financial
Services Group Inc. is a substantial shareholder in BlackRock,
Inc. When arranging transactions in securities for the Fund,
companies in the PNC Group may have provided securities
brokerage, foreign exchange, banking and other services,

or may have acted as prnncipal, on their usual terms and
may have benefted therefrom. Commissions have been paid
to brokers and agents in accordance with the relevant market
practice and the benefit of any bulk or other commission
discounts or cash commissions rebates provided by brokers
or agents have been passed on to the Fund. The services
of PNC Group companies could have been used by the
Investment Advisers where it was considered appropriate

to do 50 provided that their commissions and other berms of
business are generally comparable with those available from
unassociated brakers and agents in the markeds concemad,
and this is consistent with the above palicy of cbtaining best
net resulis,

During the year there have been no significant tranzactions
which were outside the ordinary course of business or which
were not on normal commercial terms.

10, Taxation

Under present Luxembourg lenw and practice, the Fund is

not liable to any Luxembourg ordinary income or capital

gains tax, nor are dividends paid by the Fund subject to any
Luxembourg withholdng tax. However, the Fund is subject to
a subscription tax (“taxe d abonnement™) of 0.05% per annum
levied on the M2V of the Fund at the last day of each calendar
quarter, in accordance with the 2010 Law, except in respect

of Super Money Market Fund as well as in respect of the
Portfolios or unit classes reserved for institutional investors
within the meaning of Article 174 of the 2010 Law, on which

a reduced tax of 0.01% per annum is levied, For the year
ended 31 January 2019, the Global Allocation Portfolio and
Werld Inceme Portfolio have not paid Luxembourg taxes, as no
subscription tax is paid on the assets held by the Fund in other
undertakings for collective investment already subject to that
tax in Luxembourg,

Under applicable foreign tax laws, withholding taxes may be
imposed on interest, dividends and capital geing at vanous rates.

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund — The net income {i.e., accrued
interest income net of accrued expenses) is declaredas a
dividend on each valuation date on all units outstanding on
that day to the Unitholders of record immediately pnor to the

Annual Report and Audited Accounts  [41]
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daily determination of MAW per unit, provided always that units
shall be entiled to a dvidend only from the day on which their
subscription is settled prior to 12 noon Luxembeurg time and
that units redeemed shall not be entitled to receive the daily
dividend declared on the settiement day of their redemption.

The net income of the relevant other Potfolios consists of

{1y interest accrued, discount eamed (including both original
issue and market discount) or cther income earned, (5) less
the estimaled expenses of the Portfolio (including m anagemen
feas). In respect of each dividend declared, the Board of
Directors of the Management Company may determine

if, and to what extent, such dividend is to be paid out of
wndistmbuted net investment income, realised and unrealised
capital gains, respectively increased or dacreased by net
equalisation credits or debits.

12. Credit Facility

A= at 31 Janwary 2018, Income Strategies Portfolio was
enlilled to a credd facility of USD 85,000,000 from Siale Sireel
Bank and Trust Cormpany. As at 31 January 2015, a loan of
USD 0 was drawn down (2018: LLSD 26,000,000). A loan
commitment fee is charged on a daily basis in relation to this
credt facilty which is included in the Statement of Operations
and Changes in Met Assets. The loan commitment fae consists
of 0.15% charged on the unused pertion of the credit facility
and the FED or LIBOR rate (depending on which is higher)
+0.20% margin spread on the used portion of the credd facility.

13. Security Pledged or Given in Collateral
Az at 31 January 2019, no securties have been given
of received as guarantes.

14. Financial Derivative Instruments and EMclent
Portfollo Management Techniques

Each of the Portfolios may use demvatives to hedge
market and currency risk, and for the purposes of efficient
portfolio management.

The use of derivalives may expose the Porfolios 1o a higher
degres of risk. In pamticular, denivative contracts can be
highly volatile, and the amount ofinitial margin is generally
small relative to the size of the contract so that ransactions
are geared, A relatively small market movement may have
a potentialty larger impact on derivatives than on standard
bonds or equities.

See further details in the specific Portfolio of Investments.

15. Transaction costs

In crder to achieve its investment cbjective, a Portfiolio will incur
transactions costs in relation to trading activity on its Portfolo
of imvestrents. Disclosed in the table below are separately
idantifiable transaction costs incurred by each Portfolio for the
vear ended 31 January 2019. These include commission costs,
settiement fees, broker fees and depositary fees.

[42] BlackRock Global Investment Series

Global Alocation Portlalio ush -
Global Equety Incomea Portolio [15= u] P NT
Income Strategies Portiolio uso 3218

' E-'u:-'e:r'."r":\rnés'r'ﬁarl-éi Fund T uso | =
Weeld Income Portfole Tuso | -

16, Amounts due fromito Brokers

The Portfolios trade dervatives with a range of counterparties,
The counterparties to forward foreign exchange transactions
and swap contracts are shown in the Portfolio of Investments,

Cash collateral is paid or received on swaps o cover any
axposure by the counterparty to the Fund or by the Fund to
the counterparty. Due fomto Brokers on the Staternent of Met
Aszets consists of cash collateral and margin paidireceed
from the Fund's clearing brokers and vanous counterparties.

17. Subsequent events

Effective 28 Febmary 2018, Graham Bamping was
appeinted as Chairman of the Board of the Directors of the
Management Comparny.

18. Legal proceedings
In May 2015, the Motors Liguidabon Company Avoidance
Action Trust, as the Trust Administrator and Trustee of the
General Motors bankruptcy estate, began serving complaints
on former holders of certain General Motors debt (the “Debt"),
in the United States Bankmuptcy Court for the Southern District
of Mew York. The former holders of the Debt, which are
defendants in the proceading, include the BlackRock Global
Investment Seres = Income Strategees Portfolio ("1SP7). In
addition to ISP, the lawsuit also names over five hundred other
institutional investors as defendants, including a numbser of
BlackRock fnds, The defendants recetved full repayment

of the Debt on the understanding that it was fully secured

at the time of repayment. The plaintifs contend that ISP and
other defendants were not secured creditors at the time of

the 2009 payments and therefore not entitied to the payments
in full. The plaintiffs are seeking an order that |SP and cther
defendants retum proceeds received in 2008 in full payment
of the principal and interest on the Debt, ISP cannot predict the
outcome of the lawsuit, or the effect. if any, on I5P's net asset
value. As such, no Babidity for litigation related to this matter is
reflected in the financial statements.
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Unit Classes (Unaudited)

Unit Classes In Issue
As at 31 January 2012, the Fund offers the following undl classes.

A Class destnbuding urst m ALID

A Class desinbating unit in EUR

A Class destnbuting unit i LISD

A Class deinbating uril SG0 heogad
A Class non-destributing uret in 200
A Cliss ron-distinbubing wrl m JPY
A Clags non=distibuling wnil in LISD

AD Chass aisirbuteng unid in USD

B Class disinbuting unit in LSD

C Class distnbuting unt in USD

Common disnbuting wnit in USD

Curar detributing und in USD

F Ciags destributing un in USD

Ireshifutional | desnbuging unit in LIED

J Clats deetnbuting und in USD
1 weadtably in wdubonad meslors

Unit Classes Launched
There were no unit classes launched during the period.
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2020
3,146,096,879 338,299,797
937,738,448 100,835,015
2,208,358,431 237,464,782
368,874 39,665
1,457,822,732 156,759,678
750,166,825 80,665,439
368,874
1,457,822,732
750,166,825
1.00 108
1.00 108
1.00 108
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2020
Graham D. Bamping 0
. 0
Geoffrey D. Radcliffe
. 0
Joanne Fitzgerald
Adrian M. Lawrence 0
0
Helen Pring
1990
0
Deloitte Audit S.a r.|l.

Deloitte Audit S.a r.1l.

2020

2,869,160,826.24
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2020 29
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2019 12 31
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

828 89,035 814 87,529

1,584 170,328 2,637 283,557

10 6,183 664,858 3,411 366,785
7,767 835,186 6,048 650,341

8,595 924,220 6,862 737,871

11 500 53,765 500 53,765
596 64,088 532 57,206

5,239 563,350 4,607 495,391

6,335 681,203 5,639 606,362

13 2,260 243,018 1,223 131,509
8,595 924,220 6,862 737,871

2020 21

17 37
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2019 12 31
2019 2018
14,499 1,559,077 14,114 1,517,678
(13,925)  (1,497,355) (13,285)  (1,428,536)
574 61,722 829 89,142
(106) (11,398) (142) (15,269)
468 50,324 687 73,873
21 2,258 13 1,308
y @ (108) 15 1,613
20 2,151 28 3,011
488 52,475 715 76,884
/C ) 208 22,366 (155) (16,667)
696 74,841 560 60,217

37
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2019 12 31
2019 500 532 4,607 5,639
— — 696 696

— — 696 696

( ) — 64 (64) —

2019 12 31 500 596 5,239 6,335
2018 500 529 4,050 5,079
— — 560 560

— — 560 560

( ) — 3 © —

2018 12 31 500 532 4,607 5,639
2019 53,765 57,206 495,391 606,362
— — 74,841 74,841

_ —_ 74,841 74,841

( ) — 6,882 (6,882) —

2019 12 31 53,765 64,088 563,350 681,203
2018 53,765 56,883 435,497 546,145
— — 60,217 60,217

— — 60,217 60,217

( ) — 323 (323) —

2018 12 31 53,765 57,206 495,391 606,362

17 37
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2019 12 31
2019 2018

696 74,841 560 60,217

« )/ Q) (753) 16 1,720

1) (2,258) (13) (1,398)

« )/ (208) (22,366) 155 16,667

460 49,464 718 77,207

¢ ) / 1,053 113,229 (689) (74,088)

¢ ) ST 1,037 111,509 (267) (28,711)

2,550 274,202 (238) (25,592)

/( ) 208 22,366 (155) (16,667)

2,758 296,568 (393) (42,259)

7 753 — —

/C ) 2,765 297,320 (393) (42,259)

3,411 366,785 3,820 410,765

7 753 (16) (1,720)

12 31 6,183 664,858 3,411 366,785

17 37
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1855 35 35A,
Avenue JF Kennedy, Luxembourg L-1855, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

2011
2011/61/
2013 12 2013
2019 17
2020 21
(

) IFRS

IFRS
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2019 2018
14,499 14,114

2019 2018
6,675 5,038
476 520
2,399 2,586
4,949 5,970
14,499 14,114

15 121
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2019 2018
) 16
«C )
2019 2018
— 237
(236) (82)
28 —
(208) 155
«C ) (208) 155
24.94 2018
2018
2019 2018
488 715
122 186
(236) (82)
(126) —
4 51
28 —

(208) 155
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IFRS 12
IFRS 10
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2019 12 31 14,499 (2018 14,114
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
828 814
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
814 801
14 13
12 31 828 814
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
697 335
886 2,301
1 1
1,584 2,637
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
6,183 3,411
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50

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
40 500 40 500
10
2019 2018
2018 128
77 2018 125
546 2018 482
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
36 38
2,196 1,185
28 —

2,260 1,223
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2019 12 31
— 828
1,583 1
6,183 —
7,766 829
(2,260) —
(2,260) —
2018 12 31
— 814
2,636 1
3,411 _
6,047 815
(1,223) —
(1,223) —

14
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17

2019

697

2018

336

2019

13,629
74

13,703

2,195

2018

14,278
99

14,377

1,185
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www . blackrock.com
55 52
10055 invrel@blackrock.com.
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2020 31
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.
Statement of Financial Pozition as at 31 December 2019

31 Decembrer 31 December

2w s
MNote S 04M 50
Assels
Non-current assels
Other financial assets ] B8 g14
Current asseds
Trade and other receivables Q 1.584 2837
Cash and cash equivalents 10 6,183 3411
7.767 6,048
Total assets 8,595 6,862
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 11 500 500
Other reserves 5046 532
Fetamned camings 5,239 4,607
Total equaty 6,335 5639
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 2. 260 1,223
Total equity and liabilities 8505 &, 862

Approved by the board on 21 Aprl 2020 and signed om itz behalf by:

Ms Joanne Fitzgerald
Director

} 1} r\ll. b ot ‘1"_'_\

ke

MsHelen Pring
Director

The notes on pages 17 to 37 form an mtegral pat of these financial statements.
Page 14
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

019 2018

Mote 5000 5 0

Revenue 4 14,490 14,114
Cost of =ales (13.925) (13.285)
Gross profit 574 829
Administrative expenses {106} (142)
Operating profit b 468 [

Finance income a1 13

Met (lossesh gaing on derivative financial instruments () 18
Wet finance meome 20 28
Profit before tax 488 T35
Income tax receipt/(exp ense) & 208 (135}
Profit for the year Gt 560

The above results were derived wholly from continuing eperations.

The notes on pages 17 to 37 formm an mitegral part of these fnancial statements.
Page 13
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Cash Nows from operating activities
Profit for the vear

Adjustments to cash flows from non-cash items:
Foreign exchange (gam)loss

Finance income

Income tax (receipt)expense

Working capital adjustrments:
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase{decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Ineome taxes received (paid)
Net cash flow from operating activitics

Cash Mows from investing activitles
Interest received

MNet increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held
Cash and cash equivalents st 31 Decernber

The notes on pages 17 to 37 form an mitegral part of these fnancial statements.
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019 2018
5000 LT
696 560
7 16
(21) (133
(208) 155
460 T&
1,053 {580y
1,037 {267
2350 (238)
208 (155)
2,758 (393
7
2,765 (393)
3411 3820
7 (16}
6,183 3411
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Naotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

1 General information
The company 15 a private company limited by share capital incorporated and domiciled in Luxembeourg.

The address of its registered office is:
35A, Avenue JF Kennedy
Lusermbourz

L-1855

Grand Duiclsy of Lustemboirg

The principal activity of the company is the provision of investment management, administration and
digtribution services to Luxemboure collective investment undertakings and the issue of certified or staterment of
undivided co-proprietorship interests in these funds,

BlackRock Global Investment Series (the “find"y currently offers investors the opportunity o invest in five
separate porifolios:

* Super Money Market Fund;

* Cilobal Equity Income Portfolio;
* Income Strategies Portfolio;

* World Income Portfolio; and

+ lobal Allocation Portfolio.

The fimd qualifies as an altemative investment find (*AIF") in accordance with Directive 2011/61/EU of the
European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund Managers ( AIFMD™)
and the Luxembourg law of July 12, 2013 on alternative investment find managers (the 2013 Law™)

The company is nol the altemative investment fund manager of the fund and has appomted BlackRock Aszset
Management Ireland Limited (the “AIFA™), as from 17 January 2019 to perform portfolio and risk
management fiunctions for the fund within the meaning of the AIFMD. The AIFM is authorized by the Central
Bank of Ireland.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the board on 21 Apnil 20200

2 Accounting policies

Summeary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates

The principal accoumting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statememts are set out below,
These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwize stated

Basis of preparation

These financial staterments have been preparcd on the historical cost accounting basis, except for financial
irstiEnents mensared at fair valee (as explained in the accounting policies below), and i sccordance with
Intermational Financial Reporting Standards ("[FRS") and IFRS Interpretations Committee interprofations as
adopied by the Eurcpean Union

Page 17
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies {continued)

Golng concern

In assessing the compamy’s going concern staius, the directors have taken into account various factors, including
the financial position of the company and in particular the significant net cash position. The company has, at the
date of this report, sulficient exigting finances available for its estimated requirements for the next twelve
maniths, This, together with its proven ability to generate cash from operations, provides the directors with the
confidence that the compamy 13 well placed o manage its business risks successtully.

There are po going concem isses a3 a resull of the coronaviniz cuthreak and subsequent downtum in the global
macroeconome environment. This 5 explained further i nole 19,

Afler making appropriate enqguiries, the directors have a reasonable expeciation that the company has adequate
resources Lo continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fiture. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the
going concem basis in preparing the Director’s Report and fimancial stalerents.

Changes in accounting pelicy

In the current year, the compamy has adopted and applied IFRS 16 'Leases’ (as issued by the International
Accomting Standards Board in January 2016), replacing Intemational Accounting Standards ("IAS") 17
TLeases'

Based on an analysis of the compamy's financial position as at 1 January 2019 and on the acts and circumstances
that existed at that date, the directors have assessed the impact of TFRS 16 on the compamy's financial statements
as not material

Revenue recognition
Recognition

The comparry eams revenue from the provision of services relsling Lo investment advisory, admimstration and
distribution fees. Reveme is recognised upen transfer of control of promised services to customers, i.e. when (or
ash a performance obligation & satisfied, i an anount that reflects consideration Lo which the company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those services (the “transaction price”h, net of VAT, The company enters into
contracts that can inchide multiple services and, in certain instances, may charge a “unitary fee” to cover these
services, Such fees are accounted for separatety if they are detenmined to be distinct. Consideration for the
company’s services is generally in the form of variable consideration because the amount of fees is subject 1o
market conditions that are outside the company’s influence. The company includes variable consideration as
part of its transaction price when it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not ocour, i.e. when the
associated mcertainty 15 resolved. For some contracts with customers, the compamy involves third parties and
related parties in providing services to the customer, Generally, the compay is deemed to be the principal in
these arrangements becaise the company controls the promised services before they are trmsferred o
customers, and accordingly presents the revenue gross of related costs,

Page 18
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies {continued)

Fee arrangements

Below are details of fee arrangements, and how these are measured and recognised, for revenee from the

provision of services:

*  Investmnent advisory and administration fees: The fees are recognised as the services are performed over
time. Such fees are promanby based on agreed-upon percentages of net asset value or AUM. These fees are
affected by changes in net asset value or AUM, including market appreciation or depreciation, foreign
exchange tramslation and net inflows or ouiflows Investiment advisery and administration fees for
investment finds are shown net of fecs waived pursiant to contractual expense limitations of the finds or
voeluntary waivers. Fees are generally invoiced monthly in arrears.

+  Distributien fees: The company accounts for find distribution services and shareholder servicing as distinct
services, separate from find management services, because customers can benefil fom each of the services
on their own and because the services are separately identifiable (that is, the nature of the promised services
i to fransfer each service individuallyy The company records sales commissions as distribution fee revenue
for serving as the principal underwriter andior distributor for certain mtual fimds that it manages.
Dristribution fees are generally based on net asset values and are recognised when the services are performed
and the ammmnt is known, Consequently, a portion of the distribution fees the comparny recogmised may be
related to the services perfommed in prior periods that met the recognition criteria in the ourent period. The
compamy recopnises ongoing shareholder servicmg fee revenue when and as sharcholder services are
performed over time. The compary contracts with third parties for various find distribution services and
shareholder sesvicing of certain funds to be performed on its behall These armmgements are gencrally priced
as a portion of the fee paid to the company by the fimd or as an agreed-upon percentage of net asset value.
The comparty presents its distribution fees and distribution and servicing costs incurred on a gross basis as it
iz deemed to be the principal in such transactions.

Page 19
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies {continued)

Forelgn currency transactions and balances
The financial siatemenis are presented in US dollar, which is also the fimctional currency of the compary.

Transactions in curencies other than the company ‘s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and
liabilities that are denominated in foreign cwrencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing =t that date,
MNon-monetary items caried at far value that are denominated in foreign curencies are translated at the rates
prevailing #t the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured n terms of
higtorical cost i a foreign currency are nol retranslated. Exchange differences are recogmsed in the mcome
staternent in the period in which they arise.

Tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tao curventhy payable.

The cumrent income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date m the countres where the compary operates and generates taxable
income,

Fimancial instroments

Initial recognition
Financial aszetz and financial liabilities comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial
position, excluding prepayments.

The compary recognizes finmncial assetz and Ninancial liabilties in the statement of financial position when, and
only when, the company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financ @l assets and fnancial liabilities are mitally recognised at fair value, representing the procesds received
met of premiums, discounts and transaction costs that are directly attributable to the financial asset or financial
liability.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities clagsified as fair value through
the profit or loss ("FVTPL") and sales of other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
trade date. ie. the date on which the company commits to purchase or sell the financial assets or financial
lizbilities or the date on which the asset or hability 1= received from or delivered to the counterparty. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame
penerally established by regulation or convention m the market place

Subsequent to rutial measurement, financial assets and Hnancial Labilities are measured at either amorised cost
ar fair value,

Page 20
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies {continued)

Classification and measurement
Financial mstruments are classified at inception mie one of the following categories, which then determine the
subsequent measurereent methodology:

Financial assets are classified into one of the following three categories:

* financial assets at amortised cost;

* firumcial assets at fair valee through other comprehensive imcome ("FVTOCT"), o
» financial assets at FVTPL,

Financial liabilities are classified into one of the following two categories;
+ finmncial liabilities at amotised cost; or
* financial liabilities at FVTPL.

The classification and the basis for measimement are subject to the company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash Mlow characteristics of the Nnancial assez, az detailed below:

Financial assets at amartised cost

A Nencial assel 1s measured at amodised cost if it meets both of the following ¢ onditions:

* the azsets are held within a business model whose objective is 1o iold assets in order to collect confractual cash
flows: and

* the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

If either of the above two crteria is not met, the financial assets are classified and measured at FVTFPL.

The company’s financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other recemvables and cash and
cash equivalents,

The amortised cost of a financial asset s the amount at which the financial asset s measured at witial
recogrition riamus the prncipal repayments, plus the curmulative amortisation using the effectve mterest method
of any difference between that mitial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for amy loss allowance, On the
other hand, the gross canmving amwount of a financial asset i@ the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjustmg for any loss allowance.

Income 15 recognised on an effective mterest basis for financial assets other than those financial asscts classified
as FVTPL.

The effective mterest method is a method of caloulating the amortised cost of a financial asset or Gability and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interes rate is the rate that exactly
dizcounts estimated future cash receipts or payments (including all fees and points pair or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, tranzaction costs and other premumes or discoante) excluding expected
eredit losses through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on indial recognition.

If a financial asset meets the amortised cost criteria, the company may choose to designate the fimancial asset at
FVTPL. Such an election 15 mrevocable and applicable only if the FVTPL clssification sigmificantly reduces a
febeRAmeEil of recognilion Ineonsislency.

Financial assels at FVIFPL
Financial aszets nol otherwize clazsified above are clazzified and measured as FVTPL.

Page 21
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies {(continued)

Financial labilities at amortised cost
All financial liabilities, other than those classified as financial habilities at FVTPL, are measured @l armortised

cost using the effective interest rate mcthod.

Financial liabilities at IVTPL

Financial habiliticz are classified and measured @ FVTPL when the financial liability is ether a contimgent
consideration acquired in a business combination, held for rading (inchiding derivatives) or it is designated af
FVTPL.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The camying amount of financial assets that are denominated inoa foreign curency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically:

* for financial assets measured at amontised cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationzhip, exchange
differences are recognised i the income statement and disclosed innote 5.

Page 22
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies {(continued)

Impairment of Minancial assefs
Meavurement of Expe cted Credit Loszes

The company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses ("ECL") on fimancial mstruments that are not
measured at FVFTL, namely:

* Finamcial assets that are debt 2ecurities: and
= Trade and other receivables

The ECL medel anticipates impadrmment losses by recognising them over the lifetime expected of the Nnancial
ireEtrnent including that which is forvward looking.

The comparry classifies its financial instrumenis into stage 1, stage 2 and stage 3. based on the applied
impainment methodology, as described below:

Stage 1: for financial mstruments where there has not been a sigmificam increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired on origimation, the company recognises an allowance based on the
12-month ECL.

Stage 2: for financial nstruments where there has been a sgnilicant increase in credit A=k smee initial
recognition but they are not credit-impaired, the company recognises an allowance for the full amount of the
lifetime ECL.

Stage 3: for credit-impaired financial mstruments, the compamy recognises the lifetime ECL.

The compamy measures loss allowances at an amount equal to the [detime ECL. except for the tollowing. for
which they are measured 2= 2 1 2-month ECL:

« delil securities that are determined o have a low ceedit risk (equivalent to mvestment grade raling) at the
reporting date; and

+ other financial mstruments on which the credit risk haz not increased significantly since ther mitial
recognition.

The company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent 1o the
globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.

A 12-month ECL is the portion of the ECL that results from default events on a financial instrument that are
probable within 12 months from the reporting date,

For asaets held at amortised cost, provisions for credit-imparment are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account
and are reflected in accumulated provision balances agama each relevant financial instruments balance, For

assets held at FVTOCT the loss 15 recognised in other camprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies {(continued)
Evidence that the fmancial asset s credit-impaired include the following:

= Significant financial difficulties of the borrower o 1ssuer;

* A breach of contract such as default or past due event;

* The restructuring of the loan or advance by the company on termes that the company would nol consider
otherwise;

= It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankrupley of other financial recrgamsation

* The disappearance of an active market for the security becanse of financial difficulties; or

* There iz other observable data relating to a group of assets such 2z adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issuers in the company, or economic conditions that comrelate with defaults in the company.

For trade and other receivables, the compamy appliez a simplified appreach, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from mitial recognition of the receivables.

Based on the analysis at the end of the reporting period, the impaimment on the company's assets are considered
to be immatertal and no allowance has been recognised in the financial staternents.

Equity instrumenis

An equity imstrument 15 amy contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilitics, Equity instruments issued by the company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct iz=ue costs.

Repurchase of the company s own equity instruiments is recognised and deducted divectly @ equity. No gain of
loss 15 recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the company's own
equity instrumentz.

Valuation techniques and assumptions applied for the purpeses of measuring falr value

The farr values of financial assets and financial labilitees are detemmined as follows:

« the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on
active liquad markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices ("level 1"y

* the fair values of other financial assets and liabilities (excleding derivative instruments) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discomnted cash flow analvsis uzing prices from
observable curment market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instnements " level 27

* the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are derived from valuation techniques that are ot
based on observable market data (unobservable market mputsy ("level 37
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2 Accounting policies {(continued)

Derbvative Mnanclal instruments
Dierivative financial instruments are contracts, the valies of which are derved from one or more underly mg
financial instruments or indices, and include forwards and foreign exchange.

In limited circumstances, the company uses derivative financial instruments to economically hedge its risk
associated with foreign exchange movementzs and to economically hedge against markel price exposure with
respect to certain seed investments. [ s not the company's policy to trade in derivative instruments., The
company does not designate its derivative instruments as formal hedging instruments and hedge accounting is
ot agplied

Derivative financial instruments are recognised in the statement of financial pesition st fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered mto and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each statement of
financial position date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the ncome statement immediately. Fair values
are derived from prevailing market prices, discounted cash flow models or option pricing models as appropriate,

In the statement of financial position, derivative financial instruments with positive fair valees (unrealised gains)
are mncleded as assets and denvative fmancial instruments with negative fair values (unrealised losses) are
included as liabilities,

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sour ces of estimation uncer tainty

Income taxes

The company is subject o mcome tax and judgement is required in determining the provision for tax, There are
iy tEnsachons and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination 15 uncertain. The compary
recognises provisions for tax based on estimates of the taces that are likely to become due, Where the final tax
cutcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will mmpact the current
income tax and deferred tax provizions in the period in which such determination is made.

Full details are set ot in note &6,

4  Revenue
2019 2018
5 000 = 00
Irvestment advisory and administration fees . 14,480 14.114
Disaggregated revenue information is provided below:
Analysis by Investment sivle 20m9 2018
(i £ 00
Cash management 6,675 5038
Equity 476 520
Fixed income 2399 2586
Multi-asset 4,949 5,970
14,4549 14,114
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

4 Revenue {contimued)

Contract assels

Contract assets relate to the compamy's condiional rights to consideration for services, primanly relating to
accrued income for unbilled services. These are dizclosed as accrued income in note 9,

Tramsaction price allocated to remaining perfornmnce obligations

As the company recognises revenue as the services are performed, which comesponds to the amount to which it
has a right to invoice, the company has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS 15 'Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’ and does not disclose information relating to #ts remaining performance
obligations,

5 Operating profit
Amived at after (creditingl/'charging

2019 2ns
S (b 5 00
Foreign exchinge (gams)losses (7} 16

6 Income tax

The company is subject to Listembourg corporate income tax, municipal business tax and net wealth ta. The
charge allocated to the compamne as part of the fizcal unity to which it formme a part of, representing corporate
income tae, municipal business tax and net wealth tax is shown below:

Tax (eredited)charged in the income statement

2019 2018

500 00
Current taxation
Luxembourg corporation tax - BT
Lixembourg corporation tax adjustments in respect of prior periods (236) (820
MNet wealth tax 28 -
Total cumrent income tax (208) 155
Tax (receipl)expense in the income saterment (208) 135

The tax on profit before tax for the vear is lower than (2018; lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax n
Lumembeurg of 24.94% (20018: 26, 01%6).
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

6 Income tax (continwed)
The differences are reconciled below:

19 2

5000 £ 0
Profit before tax 488 135
Corporation tax at standard rate 122 186
Decrease in current Lax from adjiustment in respect of prior perieds (236) (82)
Decrease arising from effect of fiscal unity (126) -
Increase in current tax from unrecognised foreign exchange gaing or
le=zes from tax balance sheet revaluation 4 51
et wealth tax 28 -
Total tax (creditycharge (208) 155

T Interests in unconsolidated structured entities
The AUM of the company as at 31 December 2019 was $3.0bn (2018: £2.2bn).

The company manages mvestment fimds which are considered to be structured entities withm the definition of
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”. Structured entities are not consolidated as the company does
ot fave "control" a2 defined under IFRS 10 "Conzolidated Financial Statements’. The compaw receives an
interest in these imconsolidated structured entities through the receipt of investment advisory, administration
and distribution fees from related parties. The unconsolidated structured entities are constituted as open-ended
InveEstment cormparnies.

The unconsolidated structured entities bave various mvestrment objectives and policies and are subject to the
terms and conditions of their respective offering documentation, However, all unconsolidated structured entities
invest capital primarly from third-party mvestors in a portfolio of azsels in order to provide a retum to these
investors from capital appreciation of those assets, income from those assets, or both. Accordingly, they are
suceptible to market price risk arising from uncemainties about future values of the asset they hold,

The uncomsolidated structured entities are Fnanced through equity capital provided by mvestors. Additionally
the compamy holds an imvestment of 828,392 units (2018 813.549) in BlackRock Global Investment Serics
Super Money Markel Fund with a value of $828k (2018 2214K). See note 2 for details.

The fees received duning the year to 31 December 20019, in relation to the above, were 314.499% (2018
£14.114K). The camying value on the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 iz $886k (2018
52,301k}, as represemted by accrued moome,

Maximun exposure toloss
The company's macimum exposure to loss associated with its interest in these unconsolidated structured entities
i limited to the carrving amounts shown above.

Financial suppaort
The company has not provided financial support to amy of its unconsolidated structured entities during the vear,
and has no contractual obligations or current intention of providing financial support in the fiture,
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

T Interests in unconsolidated structured entities (continuwed)

Other information

There are ne differences to the economic or veling rights atiaching to the equity held by the company from those
held by other investors. There are no liquidity srangements, guarantees of other commitments that mary affect
the fair value or rizsk of the comparmy’s interest in the unconsolidated structured entities.

8 Financial assels
31 December 31 December

o019 2018
5 0 5 )
Non-current financial assels
Fmancial assets at fair value through profit and loss held for trade IR g14

Movement in non-corrent nancial assets
31 December 31 December

2019 s
5000 5 000
Cost
At 1 January 814 801
Additions 14 13
At 31 December SEEI 814

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss held for trade represent the compamy's holdings i the
BlackRock Global Investment Serigs Super Money Markel Fund, az outlimed m note 7. Additions represent
remvested distributions.

9 Trade and other receivables
31 December 31 December

219 28
S 000 R U
Recenvables from group companies 697 335
Accrued ncome BE5 2,301
Other recenvables | 1
1,584 2,637

All trade and other receivables are due within one vear.

10 Cash and cash equivalenis
31 December 31 December

2019 208
50 R UL
Cash at bank 6,183 3411
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

11 Share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

31 December 31 December

e g

Mo, () £ 00 Mo, i = 00

Ordinary shares of $12.50 each $0 SO0 40 SO0

12 Other reserves

Legal reserve

Lusembourg companies are required to appropriate to the legal reserve a mimmurm of %% of the annual net
income, after deducting any losses brought forward, until such reserve equals 107% of subscribed capital,

This reserve may not be distributed, in the form of cash dividends or otherwise, during the Bife of the company,

Mo allocations were made in 2018 or 20019 as the meadmum S50 had already been reached. This reserve is
included az other reserves in the statement of financial position.

Met Wealth Tax reserve

The members” general meeting has ratified the creation of a special net wealth tax reserve in order to reduce the
et wealth tax payable by the company, This special reserve amounts to five times the envisaged net wealth tax
credit This special net wealth tax reserve has o remain unavailable for distribution for five vears Lo lake
advantage of the reduction in net wealth tax liability. This reserve i3 meleded as other reserves in the statement
of financial position.

During the vear, amountz totalling $141k (2018 £128K) were allocated to the net wealth tax reserve.

Additionally, amounts totalling $77k (2018: £125k) relating to amounts transferred pre 200 5 were released from
the net wealth tax reserve to retaimed eamings.

The net wealth tax reservie at 31 December 2019 amounted to 3546k (2018 $482K).
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

13 Trade and other payables
31 December 31 December

1) g
£ 00 5 000
Accrued expenses At 38
Amounts duc bo group CoHmpanics 219% 1,185
et wealth tax liability 28 -
2260 1223

All trade and ciher payables are due within one year.

14 Fair valie measurement

The fair values of financial assets and fnancial liabilitees are determned as follows:

Level 1 - fair value megsurement derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market prices for identical
assels or liabilities.

Level 2 - fair value measurement derived from inputs other than quoted prices included wiathin level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (1.2, as price) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - fair value measurement derived from valuastion technigues usimg inputs for the asset or liability that are
ot based on ebservable market data (unobservable market inpats).
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

14 Fair valee measurement {continwed)

The followmg tables provide the Fair value measurement hicrarchy of the comparmys assets and liabilftics,

Assets measured af fair value

Total

H1E

829

Total
£ 00

814

2019
Liwvel 2
5000
Forward foreign exchange contracts |
Equity mstraments 228
#29

Assets measured al Fair value

2018
Level 2
S 000
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1
Equity mstrumeents 814
#1%

215

Valuation methods and assumplions

At the statement of financial position date, foreign exchange forwand contracts were in place to hedge the
transactional foreign exchange exposure of the entity. These forwards lave a tenor of less than one month.

Foreign exchange forward contracts are classified a= level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

15 Classification ol Mnancial assels and Anancial liabfities

The classification of financial azscts and financial liabilities by accounting categorisation for the vear ending 31
December 20019 was as Follows:

Financial assets  Finmanclal assets
& liabilltles at & liabilities at

armortised cost FVTPL
- Mandatory - Mandatory
5000 £ 0
Assels
MNon-current assels
Other nos-current firancial assets - iadd
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 1,583 |
Cash and cazh equivalents 6,183 -
Total assets 7,766 829
Liabilties
Clurrent Habilithes
Teade and other pavables (2. 260% -
Total liabilities (2, 2600 -
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

15 Classification of fnancial assels and Anancial liabfities (contimued)

The classification of financial azscts and financial liabilities by accounting categorisation for the vear ending 31
December 2018 was as Follows:

Financial assets  Financial assets
& liabilities at & liabilities at

amortised cost FVTFPL
- Mandatory - Mandatory
£ (1) £ 000
Assels
Non-current assels
Other non-current financial azsets = 214
Current assets
Trade and ciher receivables 2636 |
Cash and cash equivalents 3411 -
Total assets 6,047 815
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (1,223}
Total ligbilities (1,223} -

Financial instruments measured at fair value
For details of the fair value hierarchy and valuation methods and assumptions refer to note 14,

Fimancial instruments nol measured at Gair value

Due to their short-term natwre, the canmyving value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recervables, and
trade and other payables approximates their fair value after taking into accoumt ECLs. At the statemnent of
financial position date no allowance has been recegmsed for impairment of trade and other receivables as ECLs
are constdercid to be imamatenial.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

16 Financial risk review

This note presents information about the company’s expoare to financial isks and the company s management
of capital.

Credit risk and lnpalrment

Credit risk anses in relation to trade receivables, surplus cash held in bank accoumts or held on account with
other BlackRock group companies as pant of normal treasury operations, and other asset investments. The risk
of defaull i relation 1o trade receivables arising from fee meome debtors s considered low and the company
minimizes exposure o credit risk with respect to trade receivables by activety pursuing settlement of
cutstanding management fee invoices and performance fees within the terms and conditions of the underly mg
agreement, Intercompany balances are managed centrally and agreed upon and settled on a regular basis,

Most recervables that are overdue are nol considered to be impaired. A receivable will not be snpaired unless
the expected cash flows, discounted 21 the original effective interest rate, are less than the carryving value, For
trade recetvables, the company adopts the simplified single loss rate approach o determine its average historical
loss rate, building into this calculation future events and the likelibood that debt will be recovered in the future,
The resulting ECL rate is immaterial to the comparry and no allowance has been recognised

The company applies a practical expedient to its assessment of ECLs for intercompany receivables, Given the
lack of mtercompary defaults in the past and Giture projected results, the company does nol propose recognising
an ECL allowance on any of its intercompany positions. The ECLs on other receivables are considered to be
imnaterial and no allowance has been recognized in the financial statements.

The carrying amouni of the financial assets disclosed in note 15 represents the company 's maximem expesure o
credit risk as no collateral or credit enhancements are held,
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

16 Financdal risk review {continued)

Mouarket risk

Market risk 15 the nsk that the compamy’s capital and‘or cammgs may be mpacted by changes in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and marcet prices,

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk anses where the compay's foreign currency assels are nol matched by lLiabilities
denommated in the same curvency. In addition, foreign exchange exposures arise on a transactional basis langely
in relation to fee meome which iz denominated in non-functional currencies. The company denves revenies
froan investment advisory, admmistration and distribution fees denominated n US Dollar. Expenses are mainly
denominated in Euro and as a consequence the compamy’s revenues may flucheate as a result of Euro and US
Dodlar exchange movemenls,

Foreign currency exposures are monitored regularly and minimised. Foreign curreney exposures that arise in
relation to non-operational items are uswally large m nature and are managed on a case-by-case basis, Foreign
currency exposures relating to intercompany pavables and receivables with other BlackRock group entities are
meanaged ulilizing foreign exchange forward confracts.

Sensiiiviy analysis

The sensitivity analysis covers the financial instruments at each of the statement of fimancial position dates and
assumes changes in market varables. 1t should however be noted that due to the inherent incertainty in the
world of financial markets the assumptions made may differ zignificantly from the actual owtcome particularty
as rmarket nsks tend to be interdependent and are therefore unbikely to move n solation.

Euro exchange rates are assumed to increase or decrease by 20%6 2086 is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign curmrency risk intemally to key management personnel and represents  management's
assessment of a reasonably pessible change in foreign exchange rates.

If the Bure exchange rate increased by 20%% profit and equity would decrease by 313k,
If the Euro exchange rate decreased by 2094 profit and equity would increase by $19%.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

17 Related party transaclions

The transactions with related partics that occwrred during the vear related to service charges with other entitics
controlled by the ultimate parent undertaking.

Income and receivables from related parties

Fellow
subsidiarics
29 5 i
Armounts receivable from related party o9 7
Fellow
subsidiaries
2018 000
Amounts recervable from related party 336
Expenditure with and payables to related parties
Fellow
subsidiaries
209 5000
Outsourced ATFM services and retrocessions 13,629
Oither expenses 74
13,703
Amoants payvable to related party _2.!'.‘-'5
Fellow
subsidiaries
208 £ 000
Cutsearced investment management services and retrocessions 14,278
Other expenses 99
14,377
Amounts payable to related party 1,185

There were no loans to the manager or board of directors or any other related party during the vear,

18 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

The compary's immediate holding company is BlackRock Group Limited - Luxembourg Branch and the
ultimate parent compamy and controllng party 15 BlackRock, Ine. a compamy incorporabed in the State of
Delaware in the United States of America, The parent company of the largest and smallest group that inchdes
the company and for which group accounts are prepared is BlackRock, Inc, Copies of the growp finencial
staternents are avalable upon request from the Investor Relations website af www blackrock.com or requests
may be addressed to Investor Relations at 55 East 52nd Strect, Mew York, NY 10055, USA or by cmail at
invrelgiblackrock.com.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

19 MNon adjusting events afler the lnancial period

Global markets have experienced high levels of volatility subsequent to 31 December 2019 as a result of the
coronavinus outbreak.

The majority of the compamy’s revenue s received from investment advizory and administration fees, As
outlined innete 2, investment advisory and adminestrabion fees are primarily based on percentages of net assel
value or AUM. Accordingly, where there are decreases in AUM (either a3 a result of adverse market conditions,
client redemgplions, oF both), on a like-for-like basies, the comparny 's revenie will decresse, As a1 31 Mareh 2020,
the AUM of the company has decreased by approcimately $0.3bn, although it is not clear at this date how much
of this change m ALUM is attributable directly to the outbreak of Covid-1%.

Despite the current market conditions, the company remains profitable and has an appropriate level of liquidity
to meet 1ts financial obligations as they fall due without adversely affectmg its financial position, the nonmal
course of ils business or its reputation. Furthermore, the company’s conservative approach to capital
munagement ensures that ot comtinues (o hold capital reserves in excess of both edemal and intemal
requirements up tothe signing date of these financial statements.

Additionally, the impact the coronavims has had on the global economy may mmpact the valuation of certain
financial instruments recognised on the balance sheet, where the financial instruments are fair-valued and Imked
to market inputz, or uncbservable inputs,

The quantum of the ¢ffect of coronavins on these financial instmament values camnot be practically determined
at the date of these fnancial datements, however the company s monitoring the situation and considering the
effect it may have on the valuation of any impacted underlving assets i the fiture,

From an operational perspective, the company, and the broader BlackRock group as a whole, continues to
operate az expected With businesz contmuity plans ensuring minimal distuption to its business or the
company’s ability to discharge its obligations to its vanous stakeholders.

Mo adjustments are required to be made to the financial position at 31 December 2009 as aresult of this event.
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¢!

BlackRock Asset Management lreland Limited

2019 12 125,001 1,657
2020 29
132.53
1995 19
BlackRock, Inc.

(¢

BlackRock Financial Management, Inc.

2019 324 4,847
1988

(€

State Street Bank International GmbH, Luxembourg Branch

2020 2,274,548,245 2,709 6,693
2020 29
119.13

2009
10
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4
J.P. Morgan Bank Luxembourg S.A.
2019 12 21,327,240 22 9,332
1973
@ BlackRock

Operations (Luxembourg) S.a r.l1.)

2019 12 2,623,500 1,254

(6
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited

2019 11 94,484,948 125 2,209
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2020 405

¢

2020 125,167
©

2020 5,251
(10

2020 6,695
11

2020 2,280
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(12

2020 6,000
(13

2020 405

2020 13

(14

2020 3,307
(15

2020 3,000
(16

2020 3,000
17

2020 1,250
(18

2020 1,250
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(19

2020 48,323

(20

2020 3,000
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To the Unitholders of

BlackRock Global Investment Series

35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the* Fund” )
and of each of its sub-funds, which comprise the statement of net assets and the portfolio
of investments as at 31 January 2019 and the statement of operations and changes in net
assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund and of each of its sub-funds as at 31 January 2019, and of
the results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs are further described in the

“ Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information stated in the annual report but
does not include the financial statements and our report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management Company for the
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company is responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue a report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with I1SAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted
for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the
Fund®s Management Company;

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the
Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern;

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Justin Griffiths, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

23 May 2019
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To the Unitholders of

BlackRock Global Investment Series

35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the* Fund” )
and of each of its Portfolios, which comprise the statement of net assets and the portfolio
of investments as at 31 January 2020 and the statement of operations and changes in net
assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund and of each of its Portfolios as at 31 January 2020, and of
the results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF are further described in the" Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for
the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the
Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information stated in the annual report but
does not include the financial statements and our report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company for the
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management
Company is responsible for assessing the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Responsibilities of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue a report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with 1SAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted

for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the
Fund®s Management Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
report of the Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the
Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Justin Griffiths, Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
Partner

19 May 2020
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To the sole Shareholder of

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A., which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the income statement,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A. as at 31 December 2019, and
of its financial performance and of its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the* Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under those Law and standards are further described in the

‘ Responsibilities of the" Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the Company in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information stated in the annual report but does not include the financial
statements and our report of the" Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and for such
internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A."s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the" Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a
report of the* Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for

Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors™ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the BlackRock
Fund Management Company S.A."s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report of
the” Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the
“ Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé” . However, future events or conditions may cause the
BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A. to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Director®s report is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Justin Griffiths, Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
Partner

21 April 2020
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